
 

Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR 
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web: www.dartford.gov.uk 

 
 
 

 

Audit Board 
 

 
 

 
 

    
 
 
 
 

A meeting of the above Board will be held on 

 
Wednesday 26 January 2022 

 
at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 
 

 

 
Chief Officer & Director of Corporate Services 

(18 January 2022) 
 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor R Gosine 

Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor P M Harman 

Councillor A R Lloyd 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally left blank 



 

 

 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

 AGENDA 
 

Wednesday 26 January 2022 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence.   
 

2. Declarations of Interest.   
 

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of the Grant of Dispensation (if any) by the Audit Board 
or Chief Officer. 
 

 

3. Member Training - Basics of Local Authority Governance   
 

 To receive a PowerPoint presentation from the Council’s Head of 
Legal Services and Monitoring Officer. 
 

 

4. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 
September 2021  

CO&DCS 
(Pages 1 - 10) 

5. Urgent Items   
 

 The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda. 
 

 

6. References from Other Committees (IF ANY)   
 

7. Reports from the External Auditor   
(Pages 11 - 56) 

8. Appointment of External Auditor from the 2023-24 Financial 
Year Onwards  

 
(Pages 57 - 62) 

9. Role and Effectiveness of the Audit Board and Member 
Training Needs - Self-Assessment  

 
(Pages 63 - 70) 

10. Audit Board - Independent Member(s)   
(Pages 71 - 74) 

11. Risk Management Strategy   
(Pages 75 - 96) 



 

 

12. Internal Audit Update Report (January 2022)   
(Pages 97 - 

124) 

13. Selective Invoice Checks   
(Pages 125 - 

130) 

 



 

1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT BOARD 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 22 September 
2021 at 7.00 pm. 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman) 
Councillor D Butler-Ruhle 
Councillor P M Harman 
 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Mrs. R Gosine 
Councillor S N Gosine 
Councillor A R Lloyd 
 

 
IN ATTENDANCE:   
 Sarah Martin – Chief Officer & Director of Corporate 

Services 
 Tim Sams – Head of Finance & Section 151 

Officer 
 Marie Kelly-

Stone 
– Head of Legal Services & 

Monitoring Officer 
 Fran Chivers – Internal Audit Manager 
 Mr Paul Cuttle – Grant Thornton UK (External 

Auditors) 
   

 
13. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE.  

 
The Chairman welcomed Board Members to the meeting, noted the presence 
of the Chief Officer & Director of Corporate Services, the Head of Finance & 
Section 151 Officer, the Head of Legal and Valuation Services & Monitoring 
Officer and the Audit Manager, and gave a special welcome to Paul Cuttle 
from Grant Thornton UK LLP the Council’s External Auditors.  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors; Mrs J A Ozog, Mrs R 
Gosine, S Gosine and A Lloyd, no Substitutes were nominated. 
 

14. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST.  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

15. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 21 JULY 
2021  
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Minutes of the Board meeting held on 21 July 2021 be 
confirmed as accurate. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

2 

 
16. URGENT ITEMS  

 
The Chairman confirmed that there were no urgent items for the Board to 
consider. 
 

17. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY)  
 
There were no references from other Committees. 
 

18. ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021 OF THE MONITORING OFFICER ON THE 
REVIEW OF ETHICAL GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND 
ANCILLARY MATTERS  
 
The covering report from the Head of Legal Services in her role as Monitoring 
Officer, asked Board Members to consider and endorse her Monitoring 
Officer’s Annual Report 2020/21 on the Review of Ethical Governance 
Arrangements and Ancillary Matters (attached as Appendix A to the covering 
report). 
 
She advised the Members that her standard annual report and review had not 
flagged up any areas of concern, but offered to respond to any questions on 
the review process. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Legal Services for her annual report and 
review in her role as Monitoring Officer, and in the absence of any questions 
from Members the Board RESOLVED to: 
 

1. Endorse the Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report 2020/21 on the Review 
of Ethical Governance Arrangements and ancillary matters, as set out 
in Appendix A to the report. 

 
19. REVIEW OF MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT & ARRANGEMENTS FOR 

DEALING WITH CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS UNDER THE 
LOCALISM ACT 2011  
 
The report from the Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer, asked 
Members to consider the respective amendments to the Member Code of 
Conduct, and the Arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct Complaints 
under the Localism Act 2011, as set out in Appendices A and B to her report.  
 
Her recommendations to the Board (for the reasons summarised in paras 3.5 
to 3.7 and 3.9 of the report), was that the Council not adopt the Local 
Government Association (national) Model Code of Conduct. 
 
The LGA model had received a lukewarm response from Monitoring Officers 
nationally when published, in that there were concerns over whether it clearly 
and correctly mirrored the law with respect to councillors acting in a private 
capacity. 
 

Page 2Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

3 

The challenge for the Council was to maintain a high ethical standards 
system, which served the best instincts of councillors, whilst addressing 
unacceptable behaviour by a minority, and guarding against potential 
corporate standards’ risks. 
 
It was important that the Council’s [Member] Code of Conduct did not amount 
to just a restatement of the Nolan Principles, but specified what the Principles 
demanded in a specific context, in order to guide behaviour. This would avoid 
protracted arguments about what sort of behaviour fell under a particular 
Principle. The opportunity should be taken to review the Code (as amended in 
red script at Appendix A), to enhance its clarity, consistency and quality, and 
to ensure that important areas such as bullying, harassment, equalities, 
respect and disrepute provisions were included.   
 
The LGA had issued guidance to support the application of its Model Code.  
Although not forming part of the Council’s Member Code of Conduct, the 
LGA’s supporting guidance should help Members comply with the Council’s 
Code and assist the Council in consistency of approach towards its Code. 
 
A number of low-level complaints generated by a small number of parish 
councils in 2020/21 had caused concern. In these challenging times of public 
austerity, it was increasingly important to ensure the effective use of the 
Monitoring Officer’s resources, and that any investigation undertaken was 
proportionate and required in the wider public interest. 
 
Under the Arrangements for dealing with Member Code of Conduct 
complaints, the Monitoring Officer had a wide discretion as to whether to 
begin or continue an investigation.  A number of public interest factors should 
be taken into account when deciding to investigate. Recent case law had 
reiterated that a councillor’s freedom of expression attracted enhanced 
protection when the comments were political in nature. Therefore, the criticism 
of opposition ideas and opinion was considered part of democratic debate and 
it was unlikely that such comments would be considered a breach of the 
Member Code of Conduct. This would not however include threats to an 
officer’s position or wellbeing or where comments are highly offensive or 
outrageous. 
 
In response to subsequent questions from the Chairman, the Head of Legal 
Services & Monitoring Officer confirmed that:  
 

 The proposed amendments to the Code and Arrangements [as set out 
in red in Appendices A and B to the report], would be advised to all 
Borough Councillors and to Parish/Town Councillors (through the 
respective Clerks); 
 

 Member training was proposed on the changes to the Code and 
Arrangements, including guidance on how to avoid problems 
associated with social media interactions. 

 

Page 3 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

4 

RESOLVED: 
 

1. That, for the reasons detailed in paras. 3.5 to 3.7 of the report, the 
amendments to the Member Code of Conduct, as highlighted in red script, 
at Appendix A, be endorsed and that the General Assembly of the Council 
be recommended to adopt the revised Code; 
 

2. That, for the reasons detailed in para. 3.9 of the report, the amendments 
to the Arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct Complaints under 
the Localism Act 2011, as highlighted in red script, at Appendix B, be 
endorsed. 

 
20. COMPLAINTS MONITORING AND PROCEDURE REVIEW - 2020/2021  

 
The report from the Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer informed 
Audit Board Members of the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure, 
including the number and nature of the complaints received in respect of 
services provided by the Council, during the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 
2021.  
 
An analysis of corporate complaints in the period under review was attached 
at Appendix A to the report, with Appendix B providing an equalities analysis 
for 2020/2021.  
 
Members were advised that the deadline for receiving complaints had been 
extended during the Pandemic, which had seen an increase in planning 
complaints, due in part, to Development Control Board proceedings being 
conducted via the Zoom platform and relayed to the public via YouTube. This 
appeared to have given interested parties the opportunity to re-play Board 
proceedings and submit subsequent challenges to Board proceedings and 
decisions. Complaints over waste collection had also increased during the 
Pandemic, given the impact on the contractor’s staffing levels due to illness 
and the need to isolate, and latterly, the shortage of HGV drivers. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Legal Services for her report in her role as 
the Council’s Corporate Complaints Officer. He asked whether there was any 
change proposed in the role of the ‘Designated Person’ - a role he was rarely 
required to exercise. He also noted that when dealing with complaints, the 
overlap between the jurisdictions of the two Ombudsmen was not always 
clear. 
 
The Head of Legal Services confirmed that the Housing Ombudsman had 
advocated for the removal of the democratic filter (Designated Person) as a 
mandatory part of the dispute resolution process, and removal was proposed 
as part of the draft building safety bill. 
 

RESOLVED: 
 

Page 4Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

5 

1. That Board Members note the report and appendices on the review of 
the Council’s Corporate Complaints Procedure for the period 1 April 
2020 to31 March 2021. 

  
 

21. LGA'S COUNCILLORS' GUIDE TO HANDLING INTIMIDATION  
 
The report from the Head of Legal Services & Monitoring Officer enclosed at 
Appendix A, the Local Government Association’s Guide to Handling 
Intimidation. 
 
Members were informed of a growing and disturbing list of intimidation tactics 
being used against elected councillors as reported in the press, including; 
physical threats, stalking, discrimination, sexual harassment and the 
increasing use of social media to intimidate, bully and slander councillors. 
 
The growth of social media had provided an additional and largely anonymous 
route for individuals and groups to engage in such activity. 
 
Other examples of physical intimidation were the smearing of dog faeces on 
cars, chair throwing from the public gallery at a planning committee meeting 
and the fire-bombing of a councillor’s car. As reported in the press, councillor 
behaviour and etiquette Zoom meetings during the Pandemic had on 
occasion, descended into chaos, with insults and expletives used and 
exchanged. 
 
The LGA’s Guide covered topics such as how to handle abuse, whether face-
to- face, letters, or online and the legal and practical remedies available, 
including the nature of the criminal offences involved. 
 
It could be difficult for councillors, as elected representatives, to block or 
refuse to engage with residents online, even where that user was being 
abusive or spreading misinformation. It could also feel that online queries 
should receive immediate responses, such is the fast-paced nature of social 
media – but no-one could be at their best 24/7, nor were immediate 
responses always possible, necessary or advisable. 
 
The Guide set out background information on the use of social media for 
councillors and detailed a number of key points, which Members should be 
aware of when interacting through social media platforms. The Member Code 
of Conduct would apply where Members referred to themselves as a 
councillor online, and they would be deemed to be acting in their ‘official 
capacity’ in such circumstances, and any conduct might fall within the Code.   
 
The Monitoring Officer advised that the capabilities of the World Wide Web 
often blurred the line between personal and professional communications. 
Whist social media opened new opportunities for communications and 
collaboration, it also created new responsibilities for individuals. Posted 
material could reflect not only on the individual, but also on that individual’s 
role as councillor and the Council. When participating in social networking or 

Page 5 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

6 

while using social media, common sense and good judgment had to be used 
when posting or sharing material. If not, consequences could include, among 
other issues, negative publicity, regulatory attention and confidentiality or 
copyright concerns/infringements. 
 
The Code might sometimes apply even if Members did not identify 
themselves as a councillor.  In cases involving the use of social media, 
complainants might allege that comments made had brought the role of 
councillor or the Council into disrepute. Members were advised to be aware 
that their perception of when they are acting in the role of councillor can be 
different from the view of a member of the public, and to think about the 
comments they ‘like’ or ‘re-tweet,’ as they are responsible for what they share. 
 
The Board was concerned about the possible negative implications 
associated with the incorrect use of social media and enquired whether it 
could mandate social media training. The Monitoring Officer advised that the 
Board’s role is to promote, sustain and safeguard the behaviour of Members 
and that it would be acceptable for the Board to mandate such training. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Legal Services for her report and bringing 
the LGA guidance formally to the Board’s attention. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Local Government Association’s Guide to Handling 
Intimidation be included in the Member Handbook and added to the 
suite of documents comprising Member protocols and other related 
documents; 
 

2. That the Monitoring Officer arrange mandatory training for Members on 
the use of social media.  

 
22. REPORT FROM EXTERNAL AUDITOR - AUDIT FINDINGS FOR 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2021  
 
The report from the Council’s External Auditors, Grant Thornton UK had been 
marked as to ‘To-Follow’ in the published agenda papers, and was considered 
by the Board as Appendix A to the Head of Financial Services tabled covering 
report. Appendices B and C respectively attached to the covering report. 
 
Attached as Appendices B and C to the covering report were the Council’s 
annual letter of representation to the External Auditors, and the External 
Auditors’ annual letter formally advising the Council of the 30 September 2021 
deadline for completion of the accounts for the Year ended 31 March 2021. 
 
Mr Paul Cuttle (Audit Manager, Grant Thornton UK) apologised to the Board 
for the late presentation of his Audit Findings report for the Council in the Year 
ended 31 March 2021. He advised that several areas of his report remained 
to be finally confirmed, hopefully in the next 7-9 working days, and that the 

Page 6Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

7 

delay was in no way a reflection of the performance of the Council’s Finance 
Team, with whom GT retained an excellent working relationship. 
 
In mitigation of the delay, he reminded Members that the previous November 
deadline for the final submission of annual accounts had been brought 
forward in 2021 to 30 September. Remote working during the Pandemic and 
the holding of meetings via the Zoom platform had further hampered the 
submission of a timely report to the Board. However, he remained confident 
that final sign-off of the Council’s accounts for the Year ended 31 March 2021 
would be achieved by the 30 September 2021 deadline, with the exception of 
the Value for Money (VfM) judgement, which would need to be postponed to a 
later date. 
 
On a positive note, Mr Cuttle advised Members that an ‘Unqualified’ Audit 
Opinion of the Council’s accounts was proposed by Grant Thornton, and that 
the previous material valuations uncertainty declared in the draft accounts 
concerning specific leisure and hospitality properties had been further 
analysed, declared ‘not material and removed from the final report. The list of 
proposed Audit Adjustments was listed on page 21 of his report [Appendix A 
in the tabled papers refers]. 
 
The Chairman welcomed the External Auditors’ proposal of an ‘Unqualified’ 
Opinion on the Council’s accounts for the Year ended 31 March 2021, and 
agreed to sign the annual letter to that effect [Appendix B to the report]. He 
also noted the contents of the External Auditors letter of 15 September 2021 
[Appendix C to the report], which formally advised the Chairman of the 30 
September 2021 deadline for the External Auditors report and sign-off on the 
Council’s accounts for the period under review, with the exception of the VfM 
judgement. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members welcome the External Auditor’s intention to issue an 
‘Unqualified’ opinion on the Financial Statements; 
 

2. That Members note the Audit Findings Report at Appendix A to the covering 
report; 

3. That members approve the Letter of Representation at Appendix B to the 
covering report; 
 

4. That Members note the letter from Grant Thornton postponing completion of 
their work on arrangements to secure Value for Money (VfM) regarding the 
accounts [Appendix C to the covering report].  

 
23. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTANTS) 2020-2021  

 
The covering report from the Head of Financial Services presented the 
Council’s Statement of Accounts for the period 1 April 2020 to 31 March 
2021 attached as Appendix A to the report [Item 10 in the bundle of tabled 
papers], for the Board to consider and recommend accordingly. 

Page 7 Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

8 

 
Prior to consideration of the report and Appendix A, Board Members were 
given a PowerPoint presentation from the Head of Finance on the procedures 
involved in closing local authority annual accounts, together with an 
explanation of the key financial statements.  
 
Members were advised that they would receive self-assessment forms on the 
training for completion in line with CIPFA best practice, aimed at assessing 
their skills, future training needs, and their assessment of the role of the Audit 
Board in overseeing the Council’s financial affairs. The results of the self-
assessment exercise would be presented to the Board at its next meeting in 
January 2022. 
 
In his subsequent presentation of the Financial Statements (Statement of 
Accounts) 2020/2021 [Appendix A to the report], the Head of Financial 
Services advised Board Members that the papers would be subject to further 
adjustments to be agreed with the External Auditors, it was hoped by the 30 
September deadline for the submission of the Year accounts ended 31 March 
2021, and sought the Board’s delegated authority to agree any such final 
adjustments but did not anticipate any significant changes to the presented 
papers.  
 
The Chairman thanked the Head of Finance for his report and Statements of 
Accounts 2020-21 document. He noted the large capital re-payment from the 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA), which was due to be repaid in the current 
year, thereby reducing the HRA balance. 
 
The Head of Financial Services confirmed in response to a specific question 
from a Member, that a ‘significant change’ would be expenditure in excess of 
£1.3M or a major change in financial policy, as result of an audit finding. He 
also confirmed that a final audit findings report would be presented to the next 
meeting of the Board in January 2022 as a matter of public record, following 
his concluding discussions and agreement with the External Auditors. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the Head of Finance be authorised to approve any subsequent 
amendments to the Statement of Accounts [Appendix A to the report], 
presented to Members on 22 September 2021, resulting from 
outstanding audit work, in consultation with the Chair of the Audit 
Board; 

2. That a final audit findings report for the Financial Statements 
(Statements of Accounts) 2020/2021, be submitted to the next meeting 
of the Board as a matter of public record. 

  
24. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE  

 
The report from the Internal Audit Manager provided Members with an update 
on Internal Audit outcomes and activity since the last update to the Board in 
July 2021 [Appendix A to the covering report refers]. 

Page 8Agenda Item 4



AUDIT BOARD 
 

WEDNESDAY 22 SEPTEMBER 2021 
 
 

9 

 
The Audit Manager confirmed the following principal points for Members in the 
Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 [Appendix A, Annex A agenda p.160 refers], 
including: the carried forward audit of Rent Collection/Rent Arrears (Current 
Tenants) had been successfully completed and rent arrears cleared under the 
Government’s COVID-19 Legislation; the audit on Waivers had been 
completed with a new form proposed for completion by Managers, prior to 
submission to Directors; an audit of Government Grants had been completed 
and assurance submitted to relevant Government Departments.  
 
Contract management by officers across the Council remained a weakness, 
but follow-up action and training with managers was now proposed.  
 
The Council’s Air Quality Action plan 2021 remained outstanding [report 
Annex C agenda p.167 refers], with an update report now due to be presented 
to the Policy Overview Committee in December 2021.  
 
Recruitment of a new Auditor was progressing whose duties would be shared 
with Sevenoaks Council on a 50/50 basis under the present Partnership 
arrangements.  
 
In concluding her summary, the Audit Manager informed the Board that she 
had accepted a new role, on promotion, as Head of Audit and Assurance at 
Bromley Council, and had tendered her resignation to the Chief Officer with 
effect from December. She had enjoyed her 18 months working at the Council 
and was leaving with a feeling of genuine regret. 
 
The Chairman thanked the Audit Manager for her now final report to the 
Board, and joined Members in wishing her every success in her future 
appointment with Bromley Council, and asked that the Board’s appreciation of 
her work for the Council be recorded in the Minutes. 
 
  RESOLVED: 
 

1. That Members note the contents of the Internal Audit Update Report 
(September 2021) attached as Appendix A to the covering report. 

 
25. SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS  

 
Members were asked to select a further 5 invoices for checking by Internal 
Audit from a list presented to the Chairman by the IA Manager, with the 
outcome of the exercise to be reported to the next meeting of the Board in 
January 2022.  
 

The meeting closed at 8.00 pm 
 
  

Councillor D A Hammock 
CHAIRMAN 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
 
REPORTS FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR - AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT 
2020/2021 AND AUDITOR’S ANNUAL REPORT ON DARTFORD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL 
 

 
1. Summary 

 
1.1 The External Auditor has submitted two reports: the final Audit Findings Report 

2020/2021 and Auditor’s Annual Report on Dartford Borough Council, which 
includes the findings of the work on the Council’s value for money (VFM) 
arrangements. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Members note the completed Audit Findings Report 2020/2021, at Appendix A. 
 
2.2 That Members note and consider the Auditor’s Annual Report on Dartford 

Borough Council, at Appendix B to the report. 

 
3. Background and Discussion   

 
3.1 At the last meeting of the Board, the External Auditor submitted his draft Audit 

Findings Report but committed to share a final version once all outstanding 
work was completed. The final report at Appendix A is now shared with the 
Board. There are no significant developments from the last report to bring to 
the Board’s attention.  
 

3.2 The External Auditor has now completed his work in relation to the Council’s 
value for money arrangements. The Auditor is no longer required to give a 
binary qualified/unqualified VFM conclusion. Instead, the Auditor reports in 
more detail on the Council's overall arrangements, as well as key 
recommendations on any significant weaknesses in arrangements identified 
during the audit. 

 
3.3 The summary of this work and resulting recommendations are included in the 

Auditor’s Annual Report on Dartford Borough Council, at Appendix B. 
 

3.4 Members are invited to note and consider the contents of both External Auditor  
reports at Appendices A and B. The reports will be presented by a member of 
the Grant Thornton team.  

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 
 The completion, approval and audit of the annual statement of accounts by the 

statutory deadline are key requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 (as amended). This and the related value for money review is one way 
that the Council demonstrates that it is a well-managed organisation making 

Page 11 Agenda Item 7



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
 

  

the best use of its resources, which is part of the Council Performing Strongly 
theme. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None specifically 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment None 

 
6. Appendices 

 
Appendix A – Audit Findings Report 2020/21 
Appendix B – Auditor’s Annual Report on Dartford  Borough Council 

 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
343148 

Financial 
Services/ 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 12Agenda Item 7



P
age 13

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•
•
•

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•

•

•

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•
•

•
•

•
•









P
age 22

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•
•

•
•

•
•

•
•

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•

•

•

•

•

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

Net pension liability –
£62m

•

•

•

•

•

Assumption Actuary 
Value

PwC range Assessment

Discount rate 1.95% 1.95%2-
2.05%



Pension increase rate 2.85% 2.80%-
2.85%



Salary growth 3.85% 1% above 
CPI



Life expectancy – Males 
currently aged 45 / 65

45: 22.9
65: 21.6

21.9-
24.4/20.5-
23.1



Life expectancy – Females 
currently aged 45 / 65

45: 25.1
65: 23.6

24.8/26.5/23
.3-25.0



P
age 26

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

Transparency report 2020 (grantthornton.co.uk)

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 32

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence















P
age 34

A
genda Item

 7



Commercial in confidence

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 36

A
genda Item

 7



Auditor’s Annual Report on 
Dartford Borough Council

2020-21

December 2021

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

We are required under 
Section 20(1)(c) of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 
2014 to satisfy ourselves that 
the Council has made 
proper arrangements for 
securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources. The 
Code of Audit Practice 
issued by the National Audit 
Office (NAO) requires us to 
report to you our 
commentary relating to 
proper arrangements.   

We report if significant 
matters have come to our 
attention. We are not 
required to consider, nor 
have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the 
Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness 
in its use of resources are 
operating effectively. 

2

Section Page

Executive Summary 3

Commentary on the arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in 
its use of resources 4

Financial sustainability 5

Governance 7

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness 10

COVID-19 arrangements 12

Improvement recommendations 13

Opinion on the financial statements 15

Appendices

A – The responsibilities of the Council

B – An explanatory note on recommendations

C – Use of formal auditor's powers

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe 
need to be reported to you. It is not a comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be 
subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which 
may affect the Council or all weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for 
your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent. We do not 
accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the 
basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for, nor intended for, any other purpose. 

Contents
P

age 38
A

genda Item
 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Value for money 
arrangements and key 
recommendation(s) 

Opinion on the financial 
statements 

Financial sustainability

We assessed the arrangements concerning 
Financial Sustainability and raised no indications 
of potential significant weaknesses. 

We note the Council is operating in an increasingly 
uncertain financial environment and for the second 
successive year, the Comprehensive Spending 
Review was a single year spending review. Whilst 
the Council will need to continue to plan with a 
lack of certainty over funding in the medium term it 
has the assurance of a track record of delivering 
robust financial plans.

We have audited the financial statements of 
Dartford Borough Council (the ‘Authority’) for the 
year ended 31 March 2021, which comprise the, 
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, 
Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, 
the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue 
Account Income and Expenditure Statement, the 
Movement on the Housing Revenue Account 
Statement, the Collection Fund Statement  and notes 
to the financial statements. The financial reporting 
framework that has been applied in their preparation 
is applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC code of 
practice on local authority accounting in the United 
Kingdom 2020/21.

In our opinion the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the financial position 
of the Authority as at 31 March 2021 and of the 
expenditure and income for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with 
the CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the United Kingdom 
2020/21; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014.

Executive summary

3

Under the National Audit Office (NAO) Code of Audit 
Practice ('the Code'), we are required to consider whether 
Dartford Borough Council (the ‘Council’) has put in place 
proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. The auditor is no longer 
required to give a binary qualified / unqualified VFM 
conclusion. Instead, auditors report in more detail on the 
Council's overall arrangements, as well as key 
recommendations on any significant weaknesses in 
arrangements identified during the audit.

Auditors are required to report their commentary on the 
Council’s arrangements under specified criteria. As part of 
our work, we considered whether there were any risks of 
significant weakness in the Council’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources. We did not identify any significant risks in 
respect of any of the three criteria: 

 Financial sustainability

 Governance 

 Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

We assessed the arrangements concerning the 3e’s 
and raised no indications of potential significant 
weaknesses. 

The Council has demonstrated a clear 
understanding of its role in securing economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. 
Covid-19 has had an adverse impact on a number of 
KPIs but the Council, despite having to re-deploy 
and alter priorities, was still able to maintain a large 
proportion of its services as planned.

Governance

We assessed the arrangements concerning 
Governance and raised no indications of potential 
significant weaknesses. 

The Council has demonstrated that both its 
business as usual and temporary arrangements 
arising due to Covid-19 were appropriately robust 
and applied across the organisation.

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Governance 

Arrangements for ensuring that 
the Council makes appropriate 
decisions in the right way. This 
includes arrangements for budget 
setting and management, risk 
management, and ensuring the 
Council makes decisions based 
on appropriate information.

Improving economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness 

Arrangements for improving the 
way the Council delivers its 
services.  This includes 
arrangements for understanding 
costs and delivering efficiencies 
and improving outcomes for 
service users.

Commentary on the Council's arrangements 
to secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources

Councils report on their arrangements, and the effectiveness of these arrangements as part of their annual governance statement.

Under the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, we are required to be satisfied whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources.

The National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 03, requires us to assess arrangements under three areas:

4

Financial sustainability

Arrangements for ensuring the 
Council can continue to deliver 
services.  This includes  planning 
resources to ensure adequate 
finances and maintain 
sustainable levels of spending 
over the medium term (3-5 years).

All Councils are responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness from 
their resources.  This includes taking properly informed decisions and managing key operational and financial risks so that 
they can deliver their objectives and safeguard public money. The Council’s responsibilities are set out in Appendix A.

Our commentary on each of these three areas, as well as the impact of Covid-19, is set out 
on the following pages. 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

We considered how the Council:

• identifies all the significant financial  
pressures it is facing and builds these 
into its plans

• plans to bridge its funding gaps and 
identify achievable savings

• plans its finances to support the 
sustainable delivery of services in 
accordance with strategic and 
statutory priorities

• ensures its financial plan is consistent 
with other plans such as workforce, 
capital, investment and other 
operational planning

• identifies and manages risk to 
financial resilience, such as 
unplanned changes in demand and 
assumptions underlying its plans.

How the body ensures that it identifies all the significant financial 
pressures that are relevant to its short and medium-term plans and 
builds these into them

The Council has consistently demonstrated a track record of robust 
budget setting and delivery. We have reported previously that the 
processes in place incorporates an appropriate level of challenge and 
scrutiny from Committees to ensure budgets are achievable 
operationally, there is good level of support from finance to ensure 
budgets are achievable from a resourcing perspective and timely and 
accurate budget monitoring throughout the year to ensure budgets 
remain relevant with risks identified quickly. The strong processes 
underpinning financial management has allowed the Council to 
consistently identify significant financial pressures and build these 
into short and medium term plans.

The Council set its budget for 2020/21 in February 2020. The pandemic 
started in March 2020 and it became clear over the next couple of 
months that it would have a fundamental impact on the Council’s 
finances. The Cabinet were briefed on the financial impact of Covid in 
June 2020. At that time, it was projected that the Council would forego 
over £2m in income and incur additional costs in the region of £1.1m. 
This planned response to this was for the shortfall to be funded by a 
reduction in the contribution for 2020/21 to the general fund reserve 
from £6.3m to £2m. Ultimately, due to subsequently announced 
government grant support and better than planned returns on 
investments. The final outturn was net expenditure on services £2.17m 
lower than the original budget meaning the Council could contribute 
£8.4m to reserves. So whilst others in the sector have had to utilise 
reserves, Dartford has been able to further increase its future financial 
resilience by further contributing to its reserves.

The impact of COVID-19 business rate reliefs is expected to have 
unusual effects on the timing of income recognition. This is because 
the grant to compensate for lost income is counted as income in 
2020/21 alongside the original estimated income. This will be adjusted 
for through reserves with a significant deficit payment of over £23m 
due out of the fund in 2021/22 as a result of the grant. Ignoring 

timing issues, the overall position is that in year collection dropped 
in 2020/21. It is difficult to project the ongoing effect of this but a 
larger provision for bad debts will be required in the collection fund. 
The Council estimated in February 2021 that income collected may 
fall to £4.2m from £5.8m. This drop will not be felt in year but will 
form part of a deficit to be funded by preceptors going forward. The 
government have determined that any underlying deficit relating to 
business failure/lower payment rates will be spread over three 
years. Grants to cover some unrecoverable losses as a result of 
COVID-19 were announced in the 2020 Spending Review.

A balanced budget was set for 2021/22 in March 2021 and despite 
the uncertainty relating to Covid-19 the Council does not plan to use 
reserves to support the revenue position. We have therefore not seen 
any evidence that short term measures are being used to relieve 
current pressures.

We note 2021/22 budget monitoring indicates that whilst the effect 
of the pandemic is still impacting the Council’s finances, to date 
grant funding from Government has been sufficient to support the 
necessary additional expenditure and loss of income. The Council 
therefore expects to deliver the planned financial position without 
needing to draw down from reserves/reduce transfer to reserves. 

The Council has a detailed financial plan covering the years to 
2024/25. Given the uncertainty of the financial regime, its plan has 
been drawn up on prudent assumptions on future income streams. 
The Council has considered the financial pressures brought about 
by the pandemic and has also looked at long term pressures on 
funding streams such as Council Tax, Business Rates  and the 
Government funding settlement. 

The fact the Council has continued contributing to reserves whilst 
others in the sector have had to draw down from reserves to deliver 
balanced budgets suggests the Council is in a strong position 
financially in the short to medium term. In addition, the Council has 
significant investment and cash balances of approximately £150m 
and low levels of borrowing. 

5

Financial sustainability
P

age 41
A

genda Item
 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

6

How the body plans to bridge its funding gaps and identifies achievable savings

Separate savings plans are not prepared.   A savings programme is developed at the start of 
the budget setting process and then built into the base budget. As part of the process, 
services are expected to consider service implications of their proposals, so it is ensured that 
cost reductions do not adversely impact quality of services. The final budget is then 
approved by Council. Achievement of savings then becomes part of the normal budget 
monitoring process and the achievement of budget. The Council has a history of delivering 
on savings and on its budget and its approach is felt to be appropriate.

As part of the 2021/22 budget setting, budgets have been reviewed and changes to the 
budget were made adjusting for pressures, new initiatives, expected cost increases and 
income changes. In order to ensure the Council can continue to focus on key service delivery 
and the crisis response, there has been no requirement for managers to make changes to 
their services to deliver budget savings. 

How the body plans finances to support the sustainable delivery of services in 
accordance with strategic and statutory priorities. How the body ensures that its 
financial plan is consistent with other plans such as workforce, capital, investment, and 
other operational planning which may include working with other local public bodies as 
part of a wider system.

The Council has a robust financial planning process which ties in with corporate objectives. 
There is extensive consultation to ensure the budget meets the needs of the services it 
delivers. The process ensures that key services remain funded. We found no evidence of the 
need to curtail services to support short term funding deficiencies.

The Council has the necessary resources for financial management including a financial 
system able to provide timely financial information, the necessary financial skills, experience 
and capacity in the finance team and budget holders in the services, clearly defined 
responsibilities for budget management and Corporate Management and member challenge 
of performance, holding budget holders to account, and making decisive interventions where 
necessary. The Finance team is well established with significant experience of managing the 
Council’s finances.  The Council has a positive financial culture and an appropriate ‘tone 
from the top’. The ongoing management of the Council’s financial position over recent years 
is evidence of this. 

Budgets are monitored on a monthly cycle and the financial position is reported to Cabinet 
quarterly so any deviations from plan are quickly identified and appropriate actions taken to 
rectify.

Financial sustainability

The capital programme is overseen by Cabinet, while major projects are subject to an 
appraisal and approval process. Capital funding is targeted at regeneration, property 
maintenance and service improvement. The Council have, recently employed a Major 
Projects Officer to lead on corporate projects to improve this function. Introduction of a 
formal project management framework is planned and we will monitor how this progresses.

In 2020/21, an additional role of the Council was to support the response to the pandemic. 
The response was coordinated at a county level by the Kent Resilience Forum (KRF), of which 
Dartford Borough Council is a member. The Council has paid out millions pf pounds in Covid 
grants, supported local residents and business and providing advice to business. Planning 
for 2021/22 has been challenging as the pandemic has provided increased uncertainty 
around future funding. In November 2020, a one-year funding settlement was announced 
and the next year’s funding settlement is due for announcement shortly.

How the body identifies and manages risks to financial resilience, e.g., unplanned 
changes in demand, including challenge of the assumptions underlying its plans.

The pandemic has created challenges to routine financial management in 2020/21, with the 
temporary cessation of some services to deal with Covid demands and a changing profile of 
demands of other services. The Council had to be flexible and agile in terms of how it 
managed the changes in demand and needed to have sound reporting processes to 
understand what this meant for financial delivery. The financial risks are captured in the 
Council’s Strategic Risk Register and a list of financial risks have been clearly identified and 
discussed within the budget and monitoring process. 

CONCLUSION

We found no evidence or indication of significant risks to your financial sustainability as 
such no further risk-based work has been undertaken in this area. 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

We considered how the Council:

• monitors and assesses risk and gains 
assurance over the effective operation of 
internal controls, including arrangements to 
prevent and detect fraud 

• approaches and carries out its annual 
budget setting process 

• ensures effectiveness processes and systems 
are in place to ensure budgetary control 

• ensures it makes properly informed 
decisions, supported by appropriate 
evidence and allowing for challenge and 
transparency

• monitors and ensures appropriate 
standards.

How the body monitors and assesses risk and how the body 
gains assurance over the effective operation of internal 
controls, including arrangements to prevent and detect 
fraud

Governance is the system by which an organisation is 
controlled and operates and is the mechanism by which it and 
its staff are held to account. It works from Council meetings to 
the front line. Ethics, risk management, compliance, internal 
control and best practice are all element of governance. 
Effective governance requires both clear and unambiguous 
structures and processes and effective working of people within 
these frameworks. Effective governance also requires an open 
culture that promotes transparency, a willingness to learn and 
improve and no fear to speak the truth. 

The Annual Internal Audit Opinion for 2020/21 notes “Risk 
Management within the organisation as a whole has increased 
in momentum since 2019/20, as the Strategic Risk Register was 
updated and presented to Audit Board in January 2021. 
Nonetheless, the risk maturity of the organisation requires 
further development over the forthcoming financial year. As set 
out in the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan, this will 
include a redesign of the overarching framework, including 
policy and guidance”.

The Council has a risk management policy that was last 
approved in January 2016 however we understand an update is 
being drafted for approval in early 2022. 

The Council’s Strategic Risk Register is not reported regularly to 
members. It is presented to the Audit Board once a year –
usually in January. No other Committee receives either a version 
of the Strategic Risk Register or a summary. The Council should 
therefore consider whether going forward risk is reported more 
frequently.

The Strategic Risk Register presented at the meeting had 52 
risks. A report with so many risks makes it difficult for a scrutiny 
committee to be able to meaningfully discuss and challenge.

.  

For a Council the size of Dartford we’d expect the Committee 
managing risk to be considering 10-20 separate risks. The simplest 
approach would be to only present the red scored risks – there were 
24 of these in the January 2021 update.

The Strategic Risk Register’s format is similar to that used across the 
sector using a 3x3 risk scoring matrix (some use 4x4 or 5x5 but this 
doesn’t change the approach substantively). It contains key 
controls/mitigations and a RAG rating for each risk, a target score 
and a risk owner. We understand once the Council approves its new 
risk management policy that it will consider the format of the 
Strategic Risk Register and when it does this we would recommend it 
considers reporting a ‘gross’ and ‘net’ risk score rather than a 
‘current’ risk score so members can see how effective existing 
controls in place are in mitigating risks. Furthermore, the Risk 
Register would benefit from identifying future actions to support the 
management/mitigation of each risk. All actions identified would 
need to be SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic, and 
timely).

Internal Audit services are provided in partnership with Sevenoaks 
District Council. Although the agreed plan had to be adjusted 
because of the pandemic sufficient fieldwork and reports were 
completed within the year and the Head of Internal Audit Opinion 
provided to the Council by July 2021. Progress reports highlighting 
key issues and findings on reviews are reported to Audit Board 
periodically. The Head of Internal Audit Opinion concludes that the 
Council has “Reasonable” assurance over systems of risk 
management, governance and control. This means that although 
these systems are generally sound, some areas for improvement 
were identified which, if not addressed, may put the achievement of 
some objectives at risk. Review of the Annual Internal Audit Opinion 
indicates a wide breadth of work during the year covering financial 
and operational processes and including a flexible approach which 
allowed adjustments to the plan in year. 

Internal audit presented six limited assurance reports in 2020/21. 
These reports covered broadly two headings – information 
technology and contract management. 

Governance

7

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Budgets are discussed with budget holders, senior leadership and other stakeholders prior to 
approval at Council level. 

How the body ensures effective processes and systems are in place to ensure 
budgetary control.

Budget managers have access to finance system and can review budgets at any time. 
Finance have ad hoc meetings with budget holders which are carried out as required. 
Budgets are monitored on key high-risk areas for the first part of the year with a full 
projection exercise carried out for early December Cabinet using end of September data. 
Meetings are held with managers to agree these projections and then subsequently budgets 
as well. 

The monthly corporate revenue monitoring process means Management team discuss any 
ongoing variances and reflect on mitigation ideas or alternative plans for financial 
management and the outcome is reported to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. Review of 
Cabinet papers indicates that variances are adequately identified and explained.

The Finance team is duly qualified, stable and experienced. S151 Officer is the Head of 
Finance and sits on the Management Team. 

We consider budget management arrangements to be robust and we have found no areas of 
concern during our work.

How the body ensures it makes properly informed decisions, supported by appropriate 
evidence and allowing for challenge and transparency.

There is no evidence to suggest the Council’s decision-making processes are not open or  
transparent. Papers provide sufficient information to members and they challenge and hold 
senior management to account appropriately. The Council is engaged and provides 
appropriate levels of scrutiny to external and internal audit. There is no evidence of serious 
and pervasive weaknesses in the final accounts processes leading to material errors in draft 
accounts, failure to meet statutory reporting deadlines and/or a modified opinion on the 
financial statements.

Covid-19 did impact on many organisation’s ability to make decisions in line with existing 
delegations (e.g. decisions often having to be made outside of Committee cycles) however 
we have not identified any indication that existing arrangements were overridden at the 
expense of appropriate scrutiny and challenge. 

8

It is clear from Audit Board papers that actions have been taken to address the issues 
identified and the findings of internal audit is given appropriate attention. 

We note the independent assessment of internal audit planned was completed in 2020/21. 
The report concluded that ‘ the Dartford and Sevenoaks Internal Audit Partnership 
conforms with the majority of the Standards, as well as the Definition, Core Principles and 
the Code of Ethics, which form the mandatory elements of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) and the Institute of Internal Auditors’ International Professional 
Practices Framework (IPPF), the globally recognised standard of quality in Internal 
Auditing.’ 

Counter fraud services are also provided in partnerships with Sevenoaks District Council. 
An annual report on counter fraud activity was presented to Audit Board in July 2021. The 
Counter Fraud & Compliance Team coordinated the Council’s participation in all of the 
government led counter fraud initiatives and undertook pro-active exercises designed to 
protect valuable Council Tax and Business Rate revenue collection. They also support the 
distribution of Covid Business Support Grants by creating payment assurance plans and 
devising checking protocols to ensure that funding only went to bona fide claimants. 

Counter fraud operations are underpinned by a code of conduct and whistleblowing and 
a separate anti- fraud and corruption strategy. There were last updated in October 2020.

The annual work plans for internal audit are currently approved and overseen by Board. 
From our attendance at Board, we consider it to robustly review the work of internal audit, 
providing appropriate challenge.

How the body approaches and carries out its annual budget setting process

The financial landscape due to Covid-19 made 2020/21 a unique year for financial 
planning. While future funding is unclear, a pre-Covid 19 medium-term financial plan had 
been produced based on prudent assumptions about future income streams. 

We’ve previously concluded the Council has effective arrangements in place, using 
analysis and scenario planning to understand its financial position and identify saving 
and investment options. Despite the pandemic there is no evidence the arrangements in 
place have been compromised. Budgets are discussed with budget holders, senior 
leadership and other stakeholders prior to approval at Committee level. It is also evident 
from a review of the 2021/22 budget that the impact of Covid-19 on budgets was factored 
in. 

Governance
P

age 44
A

genda Item
 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

How the body monitors and ensures appropriate standards, such as meeting 
legislative/regulatory requirements and standards in terms of officer or member 
behaviour (such as gifts and hospitality or declarations/conflicts of interests)

Various internal and external mechanisms are used to ensure the Council meets the 
necessary standards and legislative requirements.

Our work has not identified any non-compliance with the Constitution, statutory 
requirements or expected standards of behaviour. We have not been made aware of any 
data breaches at the Council.

Officer and Member conduct is set in codes of conduct within the constitution. The Member 
code is dated July 2020 but the Officer code dates from October 2013 and consideration 
should be given to its review. Members interests are published on the Council website and 
there is an opportunity for Members to declare interests at every meeting as a set agenda 
item. Related party transactions are required to be declared as part of year end closure of 
accounts and sent to all Members and Senior officers for their completion. There is a member 
protocol on gifts benefits and hospitality. The gifts and hospitality register are retained by 
the Monitoring Officer and is available for inspection on request. Officers are advised on the 
rules related to gifts and hospitality and registering of interests but there is no register of 
gifts and hospitality for officers or a formal annual declaration of interests. While we found 
no evidence of adverse outcomes of interests, gifts or hospitality not being declared, the 
Council may wish to introduce these measures in the interests of transparency. 

CONCLUSION

We found no evidence or indication of significant risks to your governance 
arrangements as such no further risk-based work has been undertaken in this area. 

9

Governance
P

age 45
A

genda Item
 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

We considered how the Council:

• uses financial and performance 
information to assess performance to 
identify areas for improvement

• evaluates the services it provides to 
assess performance and identify areas 
for improvement

• ensures it delivers its role within 
significant partnerships, engages with 
stakeholders, monitors performance 
against expectations and ensures action 
is taken where necessary to improve

• ensures that it commissions or procures 
services in accordance with relevant 
legislation, professional standards and 
internal policies, and assesses whether it 
is realising the expected benefits.

How financial and performance information has been used 
to assess performance to identify areas for improvement

This year has been incredibly challenging one for public 
services as a whole and Dartford is no different. Kent was the 
first to see the Alpha variant of Covid-19 and this has meant the 
county has been particularly hard hit by the pandemic with a 
higher than Kent average death rate for COVID-19 in Dartford. 
The first six months of the year were spent getting to grips with 
the unique challenges of the pandemic, as services adapted to 
this unknown threat and challenges of the first lockdown. 
Dartford played its part in the county wide effort to support 
residents and local business. Local Government will face yet 
more challenge as it moves from the Covid response stage to 
the task of supporting long-term economic and social recovery.

The Council has traditionally had three year Corporate Plans 
with the last iteration covering 2017-20. Due to Covid-19 a new  
version covering a two year period was not approved until 
October 2021 which is understandable given the impact on 
resources as the Council responded to the pandemic and the 
uncertainty arising in the sector. The new Corporate Plan 
retains the key themes included in the 2017-2020 Corporate 
Plan with some minor adjustments. The underlying in year 
monitoring of delivery also remains unchanged. 

Pre-pandemic, Cabinet received a quarterly update on the 
delivery of key performance indications identified from the 
Corporate Plan and actions taken.  This process was 
suspended during 2020/21 as the Council dealt with the issues 
arising from the pandemic and therefore didn’t have a revised 
Corporate Plan that identified key performance indicators for 
monitoring. We understand that now a Corporate Plan has 
been approved for 2021-23 that the quarterly updates to 
Cabinet will be re-instated.

The approach to quarterly reporting is similar to others in the 
sector. A key action report is supported by an Appendix which 
reports on delivery of the 50 key performance indicators under the 
six themes of the Corporate Plan. The report details performance 
over the previous three years, with a RAG rating and target rating. 
Minutes from Cabinet pre-Covid-19 clearly demonstrate good 
challenge and discussion on performance. When the Council is 
next reviewing its presentation of key performance indicators it 
could consider some of the good practice. In particular, the 
Council should consider whether its reporting includes information 
on the accuracy of each KPI. This should include how the indicator 
is complied e.g. from an electronic system/manual and whether it 
has subject to any verification, audit or any other type of 
validation either internal or external). 

The Council have a Data Quality Policy which has been reviewed 
this year. The policy sets out the Council’s data quality objectives 
and standards, roles and responsibilities for data quality and the 
Council’s expectations in regard to system, processes, controls and 
data security, inter alia. It also includes some tips to help improve 
accuracy in data entry. 

Whilst there has not been a specific Internal Audit review on 
performance data in recent years there are various reviews 
completed as part of the annual plan that will consider the quality 
and accuracy of performance information. These reviews will 
occasionally result in limited assurance ratings but in general the 
majority of reviews end up with full or substantial assurance 
conclusions. The annual Audit Plan also includes one or more 
financial management reviews that will assess financial 
information – for 2020/21 these reviews covered feeder systems 
and budget monitoring.

Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness

10

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

How the body evaluates the services it provides to assess performance and identify 
areas for improvement

The Corporate plan is used by officers to deliver services and to inform their 
recommendations to service committees. Councillors use it to inform their decisions too. The 
previous Corporate Plan expired in March 2020 and there was a slight delay in finalising the 
next iteration due to Covid-19. There is a now a Corporate Plan covering the period for 2021 
to 2023. The Corporate Plan is supported by other corporate strategies including the local 
plan. We have been informed further supporting plans, policies and strategies, as well as 
performance measures are being developed. 

The Council liaises regularly with other Kent Districts and has a good knowledge or what 
others are doing and where good practice is in place. However the evidence of formal 
benchmarking to support performance improvement is limited. The Council is aware of the 
various sources of benchmarking data like the LGA Research Report, however it is not clear 
how this information has been used in the Council’s own development of performance 
indicators. It is important that benchmarking is only used when credible data sets are 
available especially as in recent years Councils have diverged from standard models of 
delivery. The Council should therefore explore what types of benchmarking it might 
undertake. Firstly, it could compare its performance reporting (in terms of number and types 
of KPIs against other District Districts to determine whether others are capturing and 
reporting useful information the Council is not. Secondly, the Council could actually 
compare the performance of existing KPIs against other Councils (starting in Kent initially to 
determine whether the exercise is useful).     

How the body ensures it delivers its role within significant partnerships, engages with 
stakeholders it has identified, monitors performance against expectations, and ensures 
action is taken where necessary to improve.

Partnerships and in particular shared services have been seen as a cost effective and 
efficient way to provide services by the Council for a number of years. Partnerships have 
been entered into with neighbouring councils in Kent to provide key services such as 
revenues, payroll and internal audit. The Council is flexible in its approach, working in 
partnership when it is efficient and economical to do so, and reverting to direct provision, 

should circumstances call for that. The Council is transparent about its dealing with 
significant partners except where commercial sensitivity precludes this.

Where the body commissions or procures services, how the body ensures that this is 
done in accordance with relevant legislation, professional standards and internal 
policies, and how the body assesses whether it is realising the expected benefits.

Procurement support services across the organisation delivering front line and back-office 
services. The Council has a Procurement Strategy but it has not been updated since 2014. 
The Council do work under the National Procurement Strategy for Local Government in 
England 2018. The National Procurement Strategy also provides a toolkit for the Council to 
assess its progress against the themes and objectives within the strategy. 

The Council has a legal duty to secure value for money in commissioning and procuring its 
requirements and to continually improve the quality in everything the public sees and 
expects from it. Central Government policy seeks to ensure that all commissioning and 
procurement activity should be based on obtaining value for money. This is defined as 
considering the optimum combination of whole life cost and the quality necessary to meet 
the customer’s requirements. In conjunction with relevant legislation and the Council’s 
Constitution (particularly the Financial Procedure Rules and Contract Standing Orders). 

We found no evidence that appropriate procurement processes were not followed during 
2020/21. 

The Council has no significant commercial ventures.

CONCLUSION

We found no evidence or indication of significant risks to your Covid-19 arrangements 
as such no further risk-based work has been undertaken in this area. 

11

Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

COVID-19 arrangements

12

Since March 2020 
COVID-19 has had a 
significant impact on 
the population as a 
whole and how Council 
services are delivered.

We have considered 
how the Council's 
arrangements have 
adapted to respond to 
the new risks they are 
facing.

In March there was an impact on business as usual and delivery of services 
mainly from staff working at home and some self-isolation, some services 
were unable to function during the initial lockdown such as parking 
enforcement. Decisions around any necessary changes to internal controls 
were discussed with senior managers and escalated if necessary.

Member meetings went on-line and all staff started working from home 
where possible to reduce the risk of spread of the disease. Other measures 
were put in place to ensure the safety of those who still had to work in the 
community.

Governance arrangements were amended to meet the challenges of the 
pandemic. Specific cost centres were set up to allow for accurate 
recording of Covid related costs.

The Council was kept up to date with the situation through regular updates 
through reports to Cabinet. 

Improving economy, efficiency and effectiveness

The Council’s previous Corporate Plan expired in March 2020 and there 
was a slight delay in finalising the next iteration due to Covid-19. There is a 
now a Corporate Plan covering the period for 2021 to 2023. Additionally, 
the lack of a Corporate Plan meant the Council didn’t report against key 
performance indicators during the year. We understand, now a Corporate 
Plan covering 2021-23 has been approved that quarterly reporting to 
Cabinet will be re-instated.

CONCLUSION

We found no evidence or indication of significant risks to your Covid-
19 arrangements as such no further risk-based work has been 
undertaken in this area. 

Financial Sustainability

The pandemic has had significant financial effect on the Council 
predominately through the loss of income from commercial rents and 
car parking. However, operational changes have led to a change in 
expenditure profile which have partially offset losses.

In the early stages of the pandemic the Government announced 
various funds to provide financial support for business (Small Business 
Grant Fund, the Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Grant Fund and the 
Local Authority Discretionary Grant Fund (LADGF)). Local authorities 
were made responsible for delivering grants to eligible businesses.

Nevertheless, there is likely to be significant pressure on public funds in 
future years given the levels of borrowing undertaken by Government 
to fund Covid-19 support measures. We are informed the Council has 
commenced some scenario modelling  on the potential impact on the 
Council Tax base for the number of households from which full Council 
Tax can be collected, to understand how this may affect the Council’s 
core funding in the immediate future. In the short term any unexpected 
shortfall in funding will be met from reserves.

The Council received additional grant funding to cover costs incurred 
as a result of Covid-19. This funding was utilised in a variety of ways. 
The Government also announced a support package to partly cover 
the irrecoverable council tax and business rate loss of income in 
2020/21, whereby 75% of losses incurred will be funded by Government 
Grant.

Governance

In response to the covid-19 pandemic, the multi-agency Strategic 
Coordination Group declared the coronavirus pandemic a major 
incident on 24 March 2020 and Kent and Medway went into a national 
lockdown on that date. These measures did not significantly change 
through the whole financial year 2020/21. The first six months of the 
year was spent largely adjusting to the demands of the pandemic with 
new services being introduced and the payment of grants to support 
residents and local business. Staff were seconded to help with Covid 
related work and this had a knock-on effect to day-to-day services. 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report | November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

13

Recommendation One Recommendation Two

Auditor judgement The Council is in the process of approving a new risk strategy. Subsequent to this 
will be a review of the format of the Strategic Risk Register. As part of this review the 
Council should consider whether certain existing practices remain appropriate. For 
example:

• The Audit Board only receives a risk update once a year. 

• The Audit Board receives a copy of the Strategic Risk Register which in January 
2020 had over 50 risks. This is arguably too many risks for a Committee to be 
able to adequately consider and discuss in one meeting.

• The Strategic Risk Register reports a current risk score so it is difficult to see how 
effective existing controls in place are in mitigating risks. 

• The Strategic Risk Register does not identify future actions to support the 
management/mitigation of each risk. 

The Council has a Procurement Strategy but it has not been updated since 2014. 

The previous version of the Strategy set out objectives but did not consistently 
articulate what actions would be taken, by when and how they would be 
monitored. There was also no regular reporting on the delivery of the strategy to 
Cabinet or any other Committee of Council so it is difficult to evidence whether the 
policy achieved its intended objectives.

Summary 
recommendation

As part of the Council’s review of risk management it should consider:

• Increasing the frequency of reporting of risk to the Audit Board.

• Reduce the number of risks in the report presented to the Audit Board to a more 
manageable level e.g. just including high risk recommendations would bring the 
number of risks down to 24.

• Report a gross and net risk score so it possible to demonstrate how effective 
existing controls are in mitigating risks. 

• identifying future actions to support the management/mitigation of each risk.  
These should be SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic, and timely).

We recommend the Procurement Strategy  is updated and includes the following:

• SMART (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic, and timely) objectives are 
clearly set out in the Strategy to allow the Council to assess whether the 
Strategy is delivering as intended.

• A framework for how the delivery of the Strategy will be achieved. An annual or 
biennial review against SMART objectives reported to the Resources and 
Strategy Committee would allow the Council to assess how successful the 
Strategy is in delivering its objectives. 

Management comment The revised risk management strategy will be going to Audit Board for approval in 
January 2022 and then on to Cabinet in February 2022. This includes increasing 
the review of the strategic risk register by Audit Board to six monthly. Once the 
strategy has been approved, a complete review of the strategic risk register will be 
undertaken taking on board the recommendations  made above

Work on a new strategy with a SMART action plan has begun with completion 
target by August 2022.

Governance Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Improvement recommendations

Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness

14

The range of recommendations that external auditors can make is explained in Appendix B

Recommendation Three Recommendation Four

Auditor judgement The pre-Covid 19 annual performance reporting cycle for planning, in year 
progress and year end outturn is fit for purpose. However the Council should 
consider as part of its next review of the process on whether it should also 
capture information on the accuracy of each KPI.

The Council liaises regularly with other Kent Districts and has  good knowledge of what 
others are doing and where good practice is in place. However the evidence of formal 
benchmarking to support performance improvement is limited. The Council is aware of 
the various sources of benchmarking data like the LGA Research Report, however it is not 
clear how this information has been used in the Council’s own development of 
performance indicators.

Summary 
recommendation

The Council should consider including information on the accuracy of each 
KPI. This should include how the indicator is complied e.g. from an electronic 
system/manual and whether it has subject to any verification, audit or any 
other type of validation either internal or external). Other organisations use a 
scoring mechanism or dial to show the quality of the metric (with indicators 
subject to audit or external scrutiny and obtained via system reports scoring 
higher).

In its next assessment of performance reporting arrangements the Council should 
explore what type of benchmarking it could undertake. Firstly, it could compare its 
performance reporting (in terms of number and types of KPIs against other Kent 
Districts) to determine whether others are capturing and reporting useful information the 
Council is not. Secondly, the Council could actually compare the performance of 
existing KPIs against other Councils (starting in Kent initially to determine whether the 
exercise is useful).   

Management comment Noted. The Pentana system allows notes on each KPI and we will update those 
notes to reflect how the KPI is compiled. 

Noted.  The Leadership Team will discuss the potential benefits of benchmarking though 
we must ensure we only benchmark against comparable authorities.

Improving economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Audit opinion on the financial statements
We gave an unqualified opinion on the financial statements in September 2021.

Audit Findings Report
More detailed findings can be found in our AFR, which was published and reported to the Council in September 2021.

Preparation of the accounts
The Council provided draft accounts in line with the national deadline and provided a good set of working 
papers. 

Whole of Government Accounts
To support the audit of the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA), we are required to review and report on the 
WGA return prepared by the Council. This work includes performing specified procedures under group audit 
instructions issued by the National Audit Office.

As in previous years we expect the Council to be below the threshold requiring audit procedures however at the 
time of issuing this report the Group Instructions have not been issued by the NAO to confirm the approach for 
2020/21. 

Opinion on the financial statements

15

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 7



Appendices 

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Appendix A - Responsibilities of the Council

17

Role of the Chief Financial Officer 
(or equivalent):

• Preparation of the statement of 
accounts

• Assessing the Council’s ability to 
continue to operate as a going 
concern

Public bodies spending taxpayers’ money 
are accountable for their stewardship of the 
resources entrusted to them. They should 
account properly for their use of resources 
and manage themselves well so that the 
public can be confident. 

Financial statements are the main way in 
which local public bodies account for how 
they use their resources. Local public bodies 
are required to prepare and publish 
financial statements setting out their 
financial performance for the year. To do 
this, bodies need to maintain proper 
accounting records and ensure they have 
effective systems of internal control. 

All local public bodies are responsible for 
putting in place proper arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness from their resources. This 
includes taking properly informed decisions 
and managing key operational and 
financial risks so that they can deliver their 
objectives and safeguard public money. 
Local public bodies report on their 
arrangements, and the effectiveness with 
which the arrangements are operating, as 
part of their annual governance statement. 

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) is 
responsible for the preparation of the 
financial statements and for being satisfied 
that they give a true and fair view, and for 
such internal control as the Chief Financial 
Officer (or equivalent) determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation  of 
financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

The Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) 
or equivalent is required to prepare the 
financial statements in accordance with 
proper practices as set out in the 
CIPFA/LASAAC code of practice on local 
authority accounting in the United Kingdom. 
In preparing the financial statements, the 
Chief Financial Officer (or equivalent) is 
responsible for assessing the Council’s 
ability to continue as a going concern and 
use the going concern basis of accounting 
unless there is an intention by government 
that the services provided by the Council 
will no longer be provided.

The Council is responsible for putting in 
place proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources, to ensure proper 
stewardship and governance, and to review 
regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of 
these arrangements. 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Appendix B - An explanatory note on 
recommendations

18

Type of 
recommendation Background

Raised within this 
report

Statutory Written recommendations to the Council under Section 24 (Schedule 7) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. A 
recommendation under schedule 7 requires the Service to discuss and respond publicly to the report.

No

Key
The NAO Code of Audit Practice requires that where auditors identify significant weaknesses as part of their arrangements 
to secure value for money they should make recommendations setting out the actions that should be taken by the Council. 
We have defined these recommendations as ‘key recommendations’.

No

Improvement
These recommendations, if implemented should improve the arrangements in place at the Council, but are not a result of 
identifying significant weaknesses in the Council’s arrangements.

Yes, see pages 13 and 14.

A range of different recommendations can be raised by the Council auditors as follows:

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 7



© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Auditor’s Annual Report| 30 November 2021

Commercial in confidence

Appendix C - Use of formal auditor's 
powers

19

The following are formal powers that can be used by auditors:

Formal power Used by auditor in 2020/21

Statutory recommendations

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors can make written recommendations to the audited body which need to be 
considered by the body and responded to publicly

Not required.

Public interest report

Under Schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors have the power to make a report if they consider a matter is sufficiently 
important to be brought to the attention of the audited body or the public as a matter of urgency, including matters which may already be known to 
the public, but where it is in the public interest for the auditor to publish their independent view.

Not required.

Application to the Court
Under Section 28 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, if auditors think that an item of account is contrary to law, they may apply to the 
court for a declaration to that effect.

Not required.

Advisory notice
Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may issue an advisory notice if the auditor thinks that the authority or an 
officer of the authority:

• is about to make or has made a decision which involves or would involve the authority incurring unlawful expenditure,
• is about to take or has begun to take a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or 

deficiency, or
• is about to enter an item of account, the entry of which is unlawful.

Not required.

Judicial review
Under Section 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, auditors may make an application for judicial review of a decision of an authority, or 
of a failure by an authority to act, which it is reasonable to believe would have an effect on the accounts of that body.

Not required.

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 7



grantthornton.co.uk

© 2021 Grant Thornton UK LLP.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 
as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 
member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 
obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 7



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL  

28 February 2022 
 

 

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR 2023/24 ONWARDS 
 

 
1.      Summary 

 
This report sets out proposals for the Council to appoint an external auditor 
for the 2023/24 financial year onwards, following the end of the current 
contract arrangement with Grant Thornton.  
 

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To Audit Board 
 

2.1 That the future implications for external audit procurement arrangements, as 
detailed in the body of the report, be noted. 

 
2.2 That the General Assembly of the Council be recommended to accept the 

Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-led option 
for the appointment of external auditors to principal local government and 
police bodies for five financial years, from 1 April 2023. 

 
To the General Assembly of the Council 
 

2.3 That the Public Sector Audit Appointments’ invitation to opt into the sector-
led option for the appointment of external auditors to principal local 
government and police bodies for five financial years from 1 April 2023 be 
accepted. 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion   

 
3.1 The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 brought to a close the Audit 

Commission and established new arrangements for the appointment of 
external auditors, applicable to audits of the accounts of principal local 
government bodies from 2018/19 onwards. 

 
3.2 In July 2016, Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA) was selected by the 

Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government to take on the 
role of Appointing Person for principal local government and police bodies. 
After consideration by the Audit Board, on 12 December 2016 [Min 71] the 
General Assembly of the Council resolved to accept the invitation to opt into 
the appointing persons arrangements made by PSAA for the appointment of 
external auditors 
 

Page 57 Agenda Item 8



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 September 2021 

 
GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL  

28 February 2022 
 

  

3.3 Subsequently, PSAA appointed Grant Thornton as the auditor for the 
Council for five years from 1 April 2018. The audit of the 2022/23 accounts 
(which will take place during the 2023/24 financial year) will be the last 
under the current contract arrangement. 

3.4 Much has changed in the local audit market since audit contracts were last 

awarded in 2017. At that time the audit market was relatively stable, there had 

been few changes in audit requirements, and local audit fees had been 

reducing over a long period. 98% of those bodies eligible opted into the 

national scheme and attracted very competitive bids from audit firms. The 

resulting audit contracts took effect from 1 April 2018. 

3.5 Since that time, there have been ongoing pressures on fees and some 

performance delays in issuing opinions.  The extent to which the initial bids 

were realisable is debateable but a number of developments have increased 

pressures for Auditors across all sectors.  

3.6 A series of financial crises and failures led to an urgent drive for the Financial 

Reporting Council to deliver rapid, measurable improvements in audit quality. 

This has created a major pressure for audit firms to ensure full compliance with 

regulatory requirements and expectations in every audit they undertake. To 

deliver the necessary improvements in audit quality, firms were requiring their 

audit teams to undertake additional work to gain deeper levels of assurance, 

which has led to higher fees. Alongside this, there has been growing auditor 

recruitment and retention challenges. 

 
3.7 It is in this challenging market that the Secretary of State has confirmed 

PSAA in the role of the appointing person for eligible principal bodies for the 
period commencing April 2023. PSAA is now undertaking a procurement for 
the next appointing period, covering audits for 2023/24 to 2027/28. In 
September 2021, the Council received a formal invitation to opt-in to the 
national scheme for local auditor appointments. 
 

3.8 During Winter 2021/22, all local government bodies need to make important 
decisions about their external audit arrangements from 2023/24. The 
Council has the option to arrange their own procurement and make the 
appointment directly or in conjunction with other bodies, or they can join and 
take advantage of the national collective scheme administered by PSAA. 
 

3.9 It is recommended that the sector-wide procurement conducted by PSAA 
will produce better outcomes and will be less burdensome for the Council 
than a procurement undertaken locally because: 
 

Page 58Agenda Item 8



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 September 2021 

 
GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL  

28 February 2022 
 

  

  collective procurement reduces costs for the sector and for individual 
authorities compared to a multiplicity of smaller local procurements  

  if it does not use the national appointment arrangements, the Council 

will need to establish its own auditor panel with an independent chair 

and independent members to oversee a local auditor procurement and 

ongoing management of an audit contract; 

  it is the best opportunity to secure the appointment of a qualified, 

registered auditor - there are only nine accredited local audit firms, and 

a local procurement would be drawing from the same limited supply of 

auditor resources as PSAA’s national procurement; and 

  supporting the sector-led body offers the best way of to ensuring there 

is a continuing and sustainable public audit market into the medium 

and long term 

3.10 If the Council wishes to take advantage of the national auditor appointment 

arrangements, the decision is required to be taken (under the local audit 

regulations) at the General Assembly of the Council (GAC). The opt-in period 

starts on 22 September 2021 and closes on 11 March 2022. To opt into the 

national scheme from 2023/24, the Council/Authority needs to return 

completed opt-in documents to PSAA by 11 March 2022. 

3.11 PSAA will commence the formal procurement process in early February 

2022. It expects to award contracts in August 2022 and will then consult with 

authorities on the appointment of auditors so that it can make appointments 

by the statutory deadline of 31 December 2022.  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

4.1 The completion, approval and audit of the annual statement of accounts is one 

way that the Council demonstrates that it is a well-managed organisation 

making the best use of its resources, which is part of the Council Performing 

Strongly theme. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications External Audit costs for the statutory audit in 2020/21 
were £58,732.  

There is a risk that current external audit fee levels could 

increase when the current contracts end. It is clear that 

Page 59 Agenda Item 8



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 September 2021 

 
GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL  

28 February 2022 
 

  

the scope of audit has increased, requiring more audit 

work. There are also concerns about capacity and 

sustainability in the local audit market. 

If the national scheme is not used some additional 

resource may be needed to establish an auditor panel 

and conduct a local procurement. Until a procurement 

exercise is completed, it is not possible to state what, if 

any, additional resource may be required for audit fees 

from 2023/24.  

 

Legal Implications Regulation 19 of the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 
Regulations 2015 requires that a decision to opt in must 
be made by a meeting of the Council/Authority (meeting 
as a whole), except where the authority is a corporation 
sole. 

Section 8 governs the procedure for appointment 

including that the Council/Authority must consult and 

take account of the advice of its auditor panel on the 

selection and appointment of a local auditor. Section 8 

provides that where a relevant Council/Authority is a 

local Council/Authority operating executive 

arrangements, the function of appointing a local auditor 

to audit its accounts is not the responsibility of an 

executive of the Council/Authority under those 

arrangements. 

Section 12 makes provision for the failure to appoint a 

local auditor. The Council/Authority must immediately 

inform the Secretary of State, who may direct the 

Council/Authority to appoint the auditor named in the 

direction or appoint a local auditor on behalf of the 

Council/Authority.  

Section 17 gives the Secretary of State the power to 

make regulations in relation to an ‘appointing person’ 

specified by the Secretary of State.  This power has 

been exercised in the Local Audit (Appointing Person) 

Regulations 2015 (SI 192) and this gives the Secretary 

of State the ability to enable a sector-led body to 

become the appointing person. In July 2016, the 

Secretary of State specified PSAA as the appointing 

Page 60Agenda Item 8



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
22 September 2021 

 
GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE COUNCIL  

28 February 2022 
 

  

person. 

 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative 
Implications 

None 

Risk Assessment There is both a risk of failing to appoint an external 
auditor and an increased cost of external audit. Both 
risks can be reduced by the sector led approach that is 
recommended.  

 
6. Appendices 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Tim Sams 
343148 

Financial 
Services/ 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 61 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
ROLE AND EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT BOARD AND MEMBER 
TRAINING NEEDS – SELF-ASSESSMENT 
 

 
1.  Summary 

 
To consider and agree on a draft self-assessment and develop an action plan and 
training programme for the next year [2022]. 

 
2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
  

2.1 That the Board reviews the draft self-assessment at Appendix A to the report, 
suggesting any changes necessary in order to formulate an action plan. 

 
2.2 That an action plan be presented to a future meeting of the Board. 
 
2.3 That Members agree a bite size-training plan, in accordance with para. 3.6 of the 

report. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion   

 
3.1 CIPFA has produced the ‘Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 

Authorities and Police, 2018 Edition’, which deals with the function and 
operation of audit committees in local authorities and police bodies, and 
represents best practice for audit committees in local authorities throughout 
the UK. 

3.2 The guidance recommends a regular self-assessment of audit committees and 

includes a template to assist with this.  

3.3  Board members recently received a knowledge and skills questionnaire from 

the outgoing Audit Manager. The questionnaire was returned by four Members 

of the Board and matters where knowledge gaps were highlighted, included 

organisational knowledge, governance, internal audit and financial 

management and accounting.  

3.4 Officers have discussed some matters raised in the self-assessment and have 

developed initial plans and suggestions to improve practice. For example the 

matter referred to in question 12 of Appendix A (about Cabinet members on 

the Board), has been resolved going forward i.e. from the Annual Meeting 

2022, Councillor Lloyd will become an observer at Board proceedings so that 

his ongoing knowledge and experience can continue to support the Board’s 

work. The subject of the appointment of an independent member is dealt with 

elsewhere on the agenda. Other matters referred to in the self-assessment 

require further consideration by the Board. 

Page 63 Agenda Item 9



  
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
 

  

3.5 The results of the knowledge and skills questionnaire have been fed into the 

self-assessment at Appendix A to the report. Members are asked to consider 

the responses to the self-assessment and make comments necessary in order 

to assist Officers in formulating an action plan for agreement at the next 

meeting of the Board. 

3.6 With reference to training, the following bite size sessions are recommended: 

 January 2022 - An overview of the governance structures of the 

authority and decision-making processes 

 April 2022 - Governance  (matters associated with the CIPFA/Solace 

Framework and requirements of the Annual Governance Statement) 

 July 2022 - Internal Audit 

 October 2022 – Financial Management and Accounting – The role of 

the Section 151 Officer 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

4.1 The Board assists the Council in demonstrating that it is a well-managed 

organisation with good governance. This is part of the Council Performing 

Strongly theme. 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications 
None from this report.  

 

Legal Implications Audit committees in local authorities are necessary to 
satisfy the wider requirements for sound financial 
management and internal control included in the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 and 
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
The Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police, 2018 Edition’ supports the Audit 
Board by setting out CIPFA’s guidance on the function 
and operation of audit committees and providing a 
framework work for self-assessment. 
 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative 
Implications 

None 

Risk Assessment The Board may not be carrying out its functions 

Page 64Agenda Item 9



  
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
 

  

effectively and regular self-assessment of good practice 
mitigates against this.  

 
6. Appendices 

 
Appendix A: Draft Self-Assessment 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Audit 
Committees: 
Practical 
Guidance for 
Local 
Authorities and 
Police, 2018 
Edition 

Dec 
2020 

 Tim Sams 
343148 

Financial 
Services/ 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 65 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



APPENDIX A 
 

Self-assessment of 

 Good Practice 
 

This appendix provides a high-level review that incorporates the key principles set out in CIPFA's Position 

Statement and this publication. Where an audit committee has a high degree of performance against the 

good practice principles, then it is an indicator that the committee is soundly based and has in place a 

knowledgeable membership. These are the essential factors in developing an effective audit committee. 

A regular self-assessment can be used to support the planning of the audit committee work programme 

and training plans. It can also inform an annual report. 

Good practice questions Yes Partly No 

1 Does the authority have a dedicated audit committee? 
Yes   

2 Does the audit committee report directly to full council? 
(applicable to local government only) 

Yes   

3 Do the terms of reference clearly set out the purpose of the 
committee in accordance with CIPFA's Position Statement? 

 Partly  

 
This may be implied but the purpose is not explicitly set out. According to CIPFA, “The 

purpose of an audit committee is to provide to those charged with governance 

independent assurance on the adequacy of the risk management framework, the 

internal control environment and the integrity of the financial reporting and governance 

processes. By overseeing both internal and external audit it makes an important 

contribution to ensuring that effective assurance arrangements are in place.” As noted 

below, the Board’s role in relation to Risk Management is not sufficiently detailed in the 

Terms of Reference.  

4 Is the role and purpose of the audit committee understood and 
accepted across the authority? 

Yes   

5 Does the audit committee provide support to the authority in 
meeting the requirements of good governance? 

Yes   

6 Are the arrangements to hold the committee to account for its 
performance operating satisfactorily? 

  No 

 It is not clear what arrangements are currently in place. The Board does not provide any 

reporting to Council.  

Functions of the committee 

7 Do the committee's terms of reference explicitly address all the 
core areas identified in CIPFA's Position Statement? 

   

 ■ good governance Yes   

 ■ assurance framework, including partnerships and collaboration 
arrangements 

 Partly  

 The Terms of Reference do not consider the Board’s role in co-ordinating the assurance 

framework as a whole. CIPFA considers that the Board should 

- Promote the effective use of internal audit within the assurance framework 

Page 67 Agenda Item 9



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \2018 EDITION 

Good practice questions Yes Partly No 

- support effective relationships between external audit and internal audit, inspection 

agencies and other relevant bodies, and encourage the active promotion of the value of 

the audit process 

 ■ internal audit Yes   

 ■ external audit Yes   

 ■ financial reporting Yes   

 ■ risk management  Partly  

 The Terms of Reference for Audit Board do not set out the Board’s responsibilities for Risk 

Management. The ToR refer only to the Board agreeing the Risk Management Strategy. 

CIPFA’s Position Statement considers that the Board’s role should be to “consider the 

effectiveness of the authority’s risk management arrangements and the control 

environment, reviewing the risk profile of the organisation and assurances that action is 

being taken on risk-related issues, including partnerships and collaborations with other 

organisations”. 

 
■ value for money or best value 

Yes   

 
■counter fraud and corruption 

Yes   

 
■supporting the ethical framework Yes 

  

8  Is an annual evaluation undertaken to assess whether the 
committee is fulfilling its terms of reference and that adequate 
consideration has been given to all core areas? 

 

Partly  

 To date, there have been no evaluations but this assessment is intended to start that 

process. 

9  Has the audit committee considered the wider areas identified in 
CIPFA's Position Statement and whether it would be appropriate 
for the committee to undertake them? 

Yes 

  

10 Where coverage of core areas has been found to be limited, are 
plans in place to address this? 

 
 No 

 
Following discussion and agreement of this self-assessment, an action plan will be drawn 

up.  

11 Has the committee maintained its advisory role by not taking on 
any decision-making powers that are not in line with its core 
purpose? 

Yes 

  

 Membership and support  

12 Has an effective audit committee structure and composition of 
the committee been selected? 

This should include: 

■ separation from the executive 

■ an appropriate mix of knowledge and skills among the 
membership – see Q16 

■ a size of committee that is not unwieldy 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yes 

 

 

 

 

 

Partly 

 

 

 

 

No 

 

 

 

 

Page 68Agenda Item 9



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \2018 EDITION 

Good practice questions Yes Partly No 

■ consideration has been given to the inclusion of at least one 
independent member (where it is not already a mandatory 
requirement) 

 

No 

 
One Member of Audit Board is also a Cabinet Member.  

CIPFA’s Position Statement considers that in local authorities, the Audit Committee should 

“be independent of both the executive and the scrutiny function and include an independent 

member”. The Guide to Audit Committees goes on to state that “Having executive 

members on the committee is discouraged as it could deter the committee from being 

able to challenge or hold to account the executive on governance, risk and control 

matters. This approach is consistent with audit committee practice in other parts of the 

public sector and in the private sector. Inviting an executive member onto the 

committee should be avoided unless the committee has other compensating 

arrangements to ensure independence, for example, a majority of independent 

members or an independent chair.” 

Following this it has been decided that from the next Annual Meeting of the Council Cllr 

Lloyd will become an observer at Audit Board so that his ongoing participation can 

continue to support the Boards work. 

A training programme for the next three Board meetings is suggested in the report.  

13 Have independent members appointed to the committee been 
recruited in an open and transparent way and approved by the 
full council or the PCC and chief constable as appropriate for the 
organisation? 

NA NA NA 

 
There are currently no independent members. 

14 Does the chair of the committee have appropriate knowledge 
and skills? 

Yes   

15 Are arrangements in place to support the committee with 
briefings and training? 

 Partly  

 
Member training paused during the financial year 2020-21. The training planned for July 

2021 meeting was cancelled due to low attendance at the meeting but a session on financial 

statements was delivered in September 2021. Members have been asked to assess their 

skills / knowledge and a training programme will then be drawn up.  

16 Has the membership of the committee been assessed against the 
core knowledge and skills framework and found to be 
satisfactory? 

 

Partly 

 

 
Self assessment is in progress; at the time of writing, we are awaiting the return of three 

assessments.  

17 Does the committee have good working relations with key people 
and organisations, including external audit, internal audit and the 
CFO? 

Yes   

18 Is adequate secretariat and administrative support to the 
committee provided? 

Yes   

Effectiveness of the Committee 

19 Has the committee obtained feedback on its performance from 
those interacting with the committee or relying on its work? 

  No 

Page 69 Agenda Item 9



AUDIT COMMITTEES: PRACTICAL GUIDANCE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITIES AND POLICE \2018 EDITION 

Good practice questions Yes Partly No 

20 Are meetings effective with a good level of discussion and 
engagement from all the members 

 Partly  

 There is not a consistently high level of questions and discussions. Over the past year (and 

particularly since the return to in person meetings), attendance has decreased as follows: 

21 October 2020 – 1 apology for absence 

20 January 2021 – 1 apology for absence 

31 March 2021 – 3 apologies for absence 

21 July 2021 – 4 apologies for absence 

22 September 2021 – 4 apologies for absence 

21 Does the committee engage with a wide range of leaders and 
managers, including discussion of audit findings, risks and action 
plans with the responsible officers? 

 Partly  

 
Audit Board are able to invite leaders and managers to attend but has not done so to date. 

The Head of Paid Service attends all Audit Board meetings and answers questions as 

required. 

22 Does the committee make recommendations for the 
improvement of governance, risk and control and are these acted 
on? 

 Partly  

 The Board approves particular policies to improve governance, risk and control but does not 

make wider recommendations.  

23 Has the committee evaluated whether and how it is adding value 
to the organisation? 

 Partly 
 

 To date, there have been no evaluations but this assessment is intended to start that 

process. 

24 Does the committee have an action plan to improve any areas of 
weakness? 

 
 No 

 There is no current action plan but this will be drawn up once the self assessment is agreed.  

25 Does the committee publish an annual report to account for its 
performance and explain its work? 

 
 No 

 CIPFA’s Position Statement considers that the Committee should “report regularly on its 

work to those charged with governance, and at least annually report an assessment of their 

performance. An annual public report should demonstrate how the committee has 

discharged its responsibilities.” 

 

Page 70Agenda Item 9



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 

 

 
 
AUDIT BOARD INDEPENDENT MEMBERS 
 

 
1.  Summary 

 
To consider the appointment of one or two independent members to the Board. 
 

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That, for the reasons outlined in the body of the report, consideration be given to the 

appointment of up to two [2] non- voting independent members to the Board, for a four [4] 
year term. 

 
2.2 That, should the Board be minded to agree to the appointment of independent members: 

 
(a) a recruitment exercise (by public advertisement) be undertaken and interviews led by 

a politically representative panel of Councillors. 
(b) the finalisation of  the role description, skills, competencies and person 

specification be delegated to  the Head of Finance, in consultation with interview 
panel members; 

(c) the appointments of the successful candidates be recommended by the Board to the 
General Assembly of the Council. 

 
2.3 That, should the Board be minded not to appointment independent members, it supports 

its decision with reasons and considers whether to review the decision in 12 months. 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion   
 
3.1 CIPFA has produced ‘Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 

Authorities and Police, 2018 Edition’. The guidance notes that, “For police 
audit committees, there is a requirement to have independent members on 
the audit committee and Welsh authorities and English combined authorities 
must also include at least one independent member. CIPFA considers that 
this is in line with good practice. In establishing their audit committees, other 
authorities should recognise the need to demonstrate good governance 
principles and independence from the executive and other political 
allegiances.” 
 

3.2 The Independent Review into the Oversight of Local Audit and the 
Transparency of Local Authority Financial Reporting (also known as the 
[2020] Redmond Review) recommended that consideration be given to the 
appointment to audit committee, of at least one independent member, 
suitably qualified.  
 

Page 71 Agenda Item 10

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/916217/Redmond_Review.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/916217/Redmond_Review.pdf


                  

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 

  

As referred to in para. 3.1 above, CIPFA endorses the approach of 
mandating the inclusion of a lay or independent member and recommends 
that those authorities, for whom it is not a requirement, actively explore the 
appointment of an independent member to its audit committee. 

 
3.3 Whilst the appointment of members to the Board is a function of the General 

Assembly of the Council (in accordance with the wishes of the Group 
Leaders), politically balanced), the Board is charged with considering and 
keeping under review, the Council’s corporate governance and financial 
arrangements, to ensure that these accord with and/or comply with 
legislation and best practice. 
 

3.4 A vital element in exercising the Audit Board’s function is the ability of Board 
members to ask penetrating and relevant questions. In the self-assessment 
(dealt with elsewhere on the agenda), it is noted in question 20, that there is 
a lack of questions from Members on agenda items. This may simply be 
matter of Members lacking the experience an/d or training to ask the right 
questions. This issue may be supplemented by Independent members with 
appropriate skills and experience. 

 
3.5 Independent members should be suitably qualified with experience in the 

area of audit/governance and bringing specialist knowledge and insight to 
the workings and deliberations of the Board to provide amongst other things: 

 an effective independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk 

management framework; 
 independent review of the Council’s financial and non-financial 

performance; 
 independent challenge to, and assurance over, the Council’s internal 

control framework and wider governance processes. 
 

3.6  Independent members would not have a vote in the same way as elected 
Board members and will participate in the Board’s proceedings in an 
advisory and consultative manner. 

 
Independent member appointments should be for a period of four years. 
 

3.7 For the reasons outlined above, the Board is recommended to consider 
whether the appointment of independent members on the Board would 
improve the effectiveness of the Board, contributing to and strengthening 
the internal control and governance of the Council.  
 

3.8  Should the Board be so minded to make independent member 
appointments: 
 

 a recruitment exercise (by public advertisement) be undertaken; 

 interviews led by a politically representative panel of Councillors; 

 interviews to be designed to test that candidates have the necessary 
technical knowledge and skills to be of value to the business of the Board; 

Page 72Agenda Item 10



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 

  

 the finalisation of the role description, skills, competencies and person 
specification be delegated to the Head of Finance, in consultation with 
interview panel members; 

 the appointments of the successful candidates be recommended by the 
Board, to the General Assembly of the Council. 
 
The recruitment process may be run alongside Sevenoaks District Council, 
who is also considering the appointment of independent members to its 
audit committee and may result in successful candidates performing the 
function at both Councils. 
 

3.9 Should the Board be minded not to appointment independent members, it is 
recommended that it supports its decision with reasons and considers 
whether to review the decision 12 in months. 
 

4  .Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

 
4.1 Council Performing Strongly theme: The Audit Board is established further to 

the Local Government Acts 1972 and 2000 and its purpose is to give 
assurance to the Council and the public about the governance, financial 
reporting and performance of the Council. The appointment of non-voting 
independent members to the Board will assist and promote good governance 
and scrutiny by the Board. 

 
5 Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications There is currently no specific budget for Independent 
Audit Committee Member Allowances and any additional 
allowance would be required to be approved by Council. 
The allowances paid by other Kent councils range from 
£350 to £1,500. 
 

Legal Implications Audit committees in local authorities are necessary to 
satisfy the wider requirements for sound financial 
management and internal control included in the 
Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 and 
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 
The Audit Committees: Practical Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police, 2018 Edition’ supports the Audit 
Board by setting out CIPFA’s guidance on the function 
and operation of audit committees and provides 
guidance around independent members of audit 
committees 
 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative None 

Page 73 Agenda Item 10



                  

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 

  

Implications 

Risk Assessment This initiative should augment the Audit Board’s 
independence, provide additional expertise, and an 
opportunity for the community to play an enhanced role 
in the governance of the Council. 

 
Appendices 

N/A 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents 
consulted 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

Audit 
Committees: 
Practical 
Guidance for 
Local 
Authorities and 
Police, 2018 
Edition 

Dec 
2020 

 Tim Sams 
343148 

Financial 
Services/ 
Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 74Agenda Item 10



                

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 CABINET  
24 February 2022 

 
 

 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY REVIEW 2021 
 

 
1.  Summary 

 
1.1. This report presents a new Risk Management Strategy for approval. It also 

presents the associated Risk Management Guidance for information. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
To Audit Board 
 

2.1 That the Risk Management Strategy, at Appendix A to the report, be 
endorsed and recommended to Cabinet for approval. 

 
2.2 That the Risk Management Guidance, at Appendix B to the report, be noted. 
 
 To Cabinet 
 
2.3 That the Risk Management Strategy, at Appendix A to the report, be 

approved. 
 

 

 
3. Background and Discussion 

 
3.1 Risk management is a key element of the Council’s overall governance and 

internal control process. The Council seeks to ensure that its arrangements for 
the management of business risk across the organisation are robust and fit for 
purpose. 
 

3.2 The Council’s Risk Management Strategy was last reviewed in 2015. A thorough 
review of the Strategy has now been undertaken and the revised Strategy is 
attached at Appendix A and presented to the Board for endorsement with a 
recommendation to Cabinet for approval. 

 

3.3 The Risk Management Strategy sets out how the Council will approach risk 
management and the practices it will adopt to ensure effective governance of 
the risk management process. It aims to help the Council achieve its strategic 
and operational objectives by recognising and managing possible events that 
may impact on this. It also ensures that risk management is integral to decision 
making processes so that potential impacts are clearly understood and decisions 
are made on the basis of the best available information. 

 

Page 75 Agenda Item 11



                 

AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
 

  

3.4 Appendix B is the Risk Management Guidance. The Guidance describes the 
various stages of risk management in more detail and provides a risk 
assessment template to help identify, analyse and evaluate individual risks. 
 

3.5 The Strategic Risk Register itself was last presented to the Audit Board in 
January 2021. The Register needs a complete overview as the current version 
is overly complex and contains some risks which are outside of the control of the 
Council. Once the Risk Management Strategy has been approved, work will 
commence on a revised Strategic Risk Register with the intention of reporting 
the outcome of the review to the Board at its April 2022 meeting. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

 
 Not applicable 

 
5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 

assessments 
 

Financial Implications None 

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment The Risk Management Strategy sets 
out how the Council will approach risk 
management and the practices it will 
adopt to ensure effective governance 
of the risk management process. 

 
6. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Risk Management Strategy 
Appendix B – Risk Management Guidance 

  
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
Documents 
consulted 
 
 

Date File Ref Report  
Author 

Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

   Sarah 
Martin 

Leadership 
Team 

N/A 

      

 

Page 76Agenda Item 11



 

Risk Management 
Strategy 

 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Author Date Approved by  Date Date of next review 

Francesca Chivers, 
Audit Manager 

October 
2021 

Strategic 
Management 
Team 

9 November 
2021 

October 2023 

  Audit Board 26 January 2022  

Page 77 Agenda Item 11



1 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 

Item CONTENTS PAGE No 

1 Policy Statement 
 

2 

2 Definitions 
 

2 

3 Roles and responsibilities 
 

3 

4 Risk Appetite 
 

4 

5 Risk Management Process 
 

5 

6 Interdependencies and information flows  7 

7 Strategy Review 
 

7 

  

Page 78Agenda Item 11



2 
 

1. POLICY STATEMENT  

1.1 The Council aims to effectively manage all risks to the achievement of its objectives, 

both in terms of reducing threats to an acceptable level and maximising available 

opportunities. Risk is present in all of the Council’s activities and it is therefore neither 

prudent nor desirable to eliminate all risk. The Council supports a focused and 

empowered corporate approach to managing risks, whereby it will not be averse to a 

degree of commercial risk but where risk decisions are focused, balanced and 

proportionate.  

1.2 The objectives of the Council’s risk management strategy are to: 

 Ensure the highest standards of corporate governance and accountability in order 

to protect the interests of our community and our stakeholders 

 Embed risk management into everyday operations so that the Council is able to 

anticipate, and proactively respond to, changes and events that may impact on 

the delivery of objectives 

 Ensure that risk management is integral to decision making processes so that 

potential impacts are clearly understood and decisions are made on the basis of 

the best available information  

 Enable the Council to achieve its strategic and operational objectives by 

recognising and managing possible events that may impact on this 

 Enable the Council to remain adaptable and flexible, anticipating and responding 

to changing social, environmental and legislative requirements.  

 Enable the Council to create and identify opportunities to maximise positive 

outcomes 

 Safeguard and protect our residents, staff and wider community  

 Embed a collaborative approach to risk management through effective 

communication, sharing and aggregation of risk knowledge, thus enhancing risk 

awareness, responses and reporting 

2. DEFINITIONS 

2.1 A risk is defined as “the possibility of an event occurring which may impact the 

achievement of objectives.” 

2.2 Enterprise Risk Management is defined as “a structured, continuous approach to 

identify, manage and respond to risk”.  

2.3 A control is “any action taken by management, the board and other parties to manage 

risk and increase the likelihood that established objectives and goals will be achieved. 

Management plans, organises and directs the performance of sufficient actions to 

provide reasonable assurance that objectives and goals will be achieved.” 

2.4 A key control is a primary control that is important to the management of risk; it may 

cover more than one area or it may fulfil a function that no other control fulfils.  

 

Page 79 Agenda Item 11



3 
 

3. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1 All officers and Members have a role to play in risk management, as risks may arise in 

any part of the Council’s operations.  In particular, managers and staff who are 

accountable for achieving an objective are accountable for managing risks to achieving 

that objective.  

3.2 Other groups or individuals in the Council, such as the Health and Safety, the Insurance 

Function and Emergency Planning, have responsibility for risk specialisms.  

3.3 Key roles and responsibilities are set out below.  

Cabinet  
 

 Approve the Risk Management Strategy including the risk 
appetite. 

Audit Board   Approve the Risk Management Strategy, prior to approval 
by Cabinet  

 Maintain an overview of the effective development and 
operation of risk management in the Council, which is 
achieved by periodic reporting and monitoring, and 
independent assurance  

 Review the risk register (six monthly) 

Leadership Team  As a collective, Leadership Team own, and are accountable 
for, the Strategic Risk Register 

 This includes ensuring that all risks have been identified, 
that responses selected are appropriate, and that effective 
controls are in place to manage the risk to the desired 
levels  

 They set the risk management strategy and determine the 
risk appetite, prior to final approval by Audit Committee / 
Board / Cabinet. 

 They will ensure there are resources and arrangements in 
place to provide periodic assurance on the risk 
management framework (as this cannot be undertaken by 
the in house IA team) 

Chief Officer and 
Director of Corporate 
Services  

 The Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services leads 
on Risk Management at Leadership Team 

 This includes preparing and promoting the Risk 
Management Strategy and ensuring that this is maintained 
under regular review.  
 

Directors Individually, Directors are responsible for: 

 Acting as ‘risk owners’ for identified risks on the Strategic 
Risk Register, including regular updates and ensuring the 
effectiveness of the controls to manage the risk within risk 
appetite 

 Ensuring that there are effective arrangements for Risk 
Management within their own areas, in line with the Risk 

Page 80Agenda Item 11



4 
 

Management Strategy, including risk escalation where 
appropriate 

  

Heads of Service / 
Service Managers 

Heads of Service / Service Managers are responsible for: 

 Identifying risks within their own service areas 

 Maintaining up to date service level risk registers 

 Implementing controls to manage those risks where 
appropriate  

 Monitoring the effectiveness of the controls to manage 
the risk 

 Ensuring that the service risk register is subject to regular 
scrutiny, including the agreement of target scores 

 Providing their risk registers six monthly to the CRMG / 
Audit Manager for the purposes of aggregate risk 
reporting 

Senior Management 
Team 

 Consider and review updates to the Risk Management 
Strategy and Guidance.  

 Champion and co-ordinate risk management activities 
within their Chief Officer / Director areas.  

 Ensure that service risk registers are reviewed on a regular 
basis including at the key points highlighted below  

 Review service risk registers as a collective to identify any 
cross cutting risks that should be considered for escalation 
to the Strategic Risk Register.  

 Provide scrutiny and challenge to the Strategic Risk 
Register, where appropriate 

Head of Finance (s151 
Officer) 

 Review the risk management strategy alongside the  Chief 
Officer and Director of Corporate Services and the Audit 
Manager  

 Work with the  Audit Manager to update the Strategic Risk 
Register 

 Take updates of the SRR to Management Team and Audit 
Board  

Audit Manager  The Audit Manager will  

 Assist the Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services 
to maintain and review the Risk Management Strategy and 
guidance in line with best practice 

 Facilitate the update of the SRR 

 Co-ordinate risk reporting, including aggregate reports of 
service risk registers 

All elected Members 
and staff  

 Identify risks and contribute to the management of risks as 
relevant and appropriate.  

 Project / Programme / Contract Managers are also 
responsible for ensuring that risk management is 
embedded with their project / programme / contract  

  

Page 81 Agenda Item 11



5 
 

4. RISK APPETITE 

4.1 The Council recognises that it is not possible or desirable to eliminate all risk. Some 

acceptance or exploitation of risk may be necessary in order to maximise 

opportunities; other risks may be outside the control of the Council or it may not be 

cost effective to reduce the risk further.  

4.2 Any risks with a current score within the ‘High’ category will be considered outside the 

Council’s risk appetite and further action to reduce the risk will be necessary.  

4.3 Any ‘Medium’ risks currently scoring 10 or above are also likely to be outside the 

Council’s risk appetite. Careful consideration should be given as to whether further, 

cost-effective action can further reduce impact or likelihood.  

4.4 ‘Low’ scoring risks will be considered within the organisation’s risk appetite and no 

further action will be necessary.  

4.5 Whether a risk is within or outside the Council’s risk appetite will also be determined 

by the scoring applied to the risk (see Risk Management Guidance).  All risks must be 

given a target score as well as the inherent and current scores. The target score will 

provide the level of risk that the Council is prepared to accept for that particular risk; 

hence it is important that the target score is subject to regular scrutiny separate from 

the risk owner.  

5. RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS 

5.1 The risk management process is cyclical and consists of the following stages: 

 

Diagram 1 – Risk Management Process 

5.2 Further information on each of these stages is set out in the Risk Management 

Guidance.  

5.3 Risk management takes place on three levels; Strategic, Operational (service level) and 

project / programme / contract as per the diagram below. The table explains each of 

these levels in greater detail:   

Objectives

Identify 
risk

Analyse 
and 

Evaluat
e

Determi
ne 

respons
e

Implem
ent 

Control
s

Monitor 
and 

Report

Page 82Agenda Item 11



6 
 

 

Project / Programme Risks

Operational Risks

Strategic Risks

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 a
n

d 
C

om
m

u
ni

ca
ti

o
n

 

Diagram 2 – Risk Management Levels 

Strategic   Strategic risks are those which affect key corporate 
objectives or may impact the Council as a whole, or 
several different services within the Council. They may 
also be ‘High’ risks escalated from service level risk 
registers.  

 Strategic risks are captured on the Strategic Risk Register 
(SRR) and are collectively owned by Leadership Team. 

 Risk owners at this level will usually be a member of 
Leadership Team although there may also be a named 
Senior Manager with joint responsibility  

 The SRR is updated and presented to Leadership Team 
quarterly; these updates are facilitated by the Audit 
Manager working alongside the Head of Finance and in 
discussion with risk owners. 

 The SRR is presented twice yearly to Audit Board for 
assurance.  

Operational (Service 
Level) 

 Service level risks are those which may impact the day to 
day operations or the objectives of individual services.  

 Service level risk management is owned by the relevant 
Service Manager or Head of Service.  

 Chief Officers / Directors ensure that effective 
arrangements are in place in their own Directorates  

 Service level risks are captured on service risk registers 
which are owned by the relevant service manager / Head 
of Service. These should be updated as often as is 
necessary. However as a minimum they should be updated 
alongside the Service Plan and during the budget planning 
process 

 Individual Directorates will need to establish processes for 
ensuring that service risk registers are subject to collective 
scrutiny and debate. This could be achieved by: 

Page 83 Agenda Item 11



7 
 

o Review and discussion at service management 
team meetings 

o Submission to the Director alongside Service Plans   
o Review and discussion with the Director during 

regular 121s. 

 Any ‘High’ risks should be considered for escalation to the 
Strategic Risk Register, in discussion with the relevant 
Chief Officer/Director 

 The Senior Management Team will review Service risk 
registers as a collective to identify any cross cutting risks, 
interdependencies and any discrepancies in risk appetite 
or response 

 The Audit Manager will present an aggregate report of 
service level risks to SMT annually 

Project / Programme / 
Contract 

 Project / programme risks are those which may impact 
delivery of the project / programme.  

 Individual projects, programmes and contracts should 
have their own risk registers to capture and monitor risks.  

 These are the responsibility of the project / programme / 
contract manager and should be discussed regularly at 
project / programme boards.  

 Any ‘High’ risks should be considered for escalation to the 
service risk register.  

 

6. INTERDEPENDENCIES AND INFORMATION FLOWS 

6.1 The cyclical process set out above in Diagram 1 should be in place at each of these 

three levels. However, none of the levels operate in isolation as there are links, 

interdependences, escalation routes and information flows between them.  

6.2 As a minimum, any risks with a current net score of ‘High’ should be considered, in 

conjunction with the Service Manager or Chief Officer, for escalation to the next level.   

6.3 Similarly, any cross cutting risks identified on two or more service risk registers should 

be considered for inclusion on the Strategic Risk Register.  

6.4 Management Team will review service level risk registers to identify any cross-cutting 

risks and interdependencies, and an annual report on aggregate risks from these 

registers will be provided to Leadership Team. 

7. STRATEGY REVIEW 

7.1 The Risk Management Strategy will be reviewed and presented to Audit Board and 

Cabinet for approval every two years at a minimum.  

Page 84Agenda Item 11



 

Risk Management 
Guidance 

 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Author Date Date Date of next review 

Francesca Chivers, 
Audit Manager 

October 
2021 

9 November 
2021 

October 2023 

Page 85 Agenda Item 11



1 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT GUIDANCE 

Item CONTENTS PAGE No 

1 Risk Management Guidance 2 

2 Identify Risk 
 

2 

3 Analyse Risk 
 

2 

4 Evaluate Risk 
 

4 

5 Respond to Risk 4 

6 Recording Risks 5 

7 Monitor 5 

8 Report 6 

9 Natural Bias 6 

10 Training and Guidance 7 

11 Annex A Impact Matrix 8 

12 Annex B – Likelihood Scales  
 

10 

 

  

Page 86Agenda Item 11



2 
 

1. RISK MANAGEMENT GUIDANCE 

1.1 The following guidance describes the various stages of risk management in more 

detail. You can use the risk assessment template to help you identify, analyse and 

evaluate risk, prior to recording the outcome on the risk register. This template is not 

mandatory but is likely to be helpful for more complex risks. 

2. IDENTIFY RISK   

2.1 There are two stages to identifying risk: initial and continuous.  

 The initial stage will generally happen at the outset of a project, or when there 

are no documented risk assessments, or when devising a new strategy / service 

plan.  

 Responsible officers should subsequently continually review risks and add new 

ones as they arise. In this way, risks can be added to the risk register at any stage; 

it is not necessary to wait until a milestone review takes place.  

2.2 Generally, risks are considered against objectives but a word of caution when using 

this approach: unless all service / corporate objectives are stated fully, it may be 

possible to miss risks purely by using this approach.  

2.3 Risks can be identified in a variety of different ways. Particularly when undertaking an 

initial risk assessment, some of the following tools may be useful: 

 PESTEL analysis (Political, Economic, Social, Technological, Environmental, Legal) 

 SWOT analysis (strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, threats – the latter two are 

risks) 

 Risk identification workshop with a cross-section of staff  

 Brainstorming session  

 Scenario analysis 

 Past experience / lessons learned 

 Sector or other research  

2.4 The output of the risk identification should be a statement or series of statements that 

answers three questions: 

 What might happen (the event) 

 How might it happen (the cause) 

 Why does it matter (the consequence)  

3. ANALYSE RISK 

3.1 Analysing the risk means determining both the likelihood and the impact of the risk 

occurring.  

3.2 The Council uses a 5 x 5 scoring matrix for both impact and likelihood. The impact 

matrix at Annex A sets outs the Council’s definitions for each of the ratings across a 

Page 87 Agenda Item 11



3 
 

range of potential impacts and Annex B sets out the likelihood definitions. These 

matrices are not intended to be exhaustive and for both impact and likelihood, an 

element of professional judgment is likely to be necessary. (This is one reason why it 

is important for all risk registers to be periodically subject to review and challenge.) 

3.3 It is also important for consistency that all sections of the Council use the same scoring 

grid. This will enable risks to be compared and analysed across the Council as a whole 

so that we have a clear picture of our total risk exposure.   

3.4 The scoring grid is shown below:  

  Impact 

  Minimal (1) Minor (2) Moderate (3) Major (4) Critical (5) 

Likelih
o

o
d

 

Very Likely 
(5) 

5   10  15  20  25 

Likely  
(4) 

 4 8   12  16 20  

Possible 
(3) 

 3 6  9 12 15 

Unlikely 
(2) 

 2  4 6 8 10 

Very 
Unlikely 

(1) 
 1  2 3  4  5 

 

3.5 Each risk should be assessed twice: 

1) The risk should first be assessed as the inherent risk (ie, what is the impact and 

likelihood before any controls are applied).   

2) Existing controls should then be identified and the risk should be scored again, 

with the effects of the controls considered. This is the current risk. 

3.6 It is important to capture both scores so that the effects and the effectiveness of 

controls are understood and can be monitored. This exercise may also identify any 

controls that are surplus to requirements.  

3.7 It may be helpful to think of controls in two different ways: 

 Those that prevent an incident from occurring  

 Those that mitigate the impact of an incident occurring.  

Page 88Agenda Item 11



4 
 

4. EVALUATE RISK  

4.1 Risk evaluation means comparing the existing level of risk against risk appetite and 

target risk levels.  

4.2 The Council’s risk appetite is set out in the Risk Strategy and is as follows: 

4.3 The Council recognises that it is not possible or desirable to eliminate all risk. Some 

acceptance or exploitation of risk may be necessary in order to maximise 

opportunities; other risks may be outside the control of the Council or it may not be 

cost effective to reduce the risk further.  

4.4 Any risks with a current score within the ‘High’ category will be considered outside the 

Council’s risk appetite and further action to reduce the risk will be necessary.  

4.5 Any ‘Medium’ risks currently scoring 10 or above are also likely to be outside the 

Council’s risk appetite. Careful consideration should be given as to whether further, 

cost-effective action can further reduce impact or likelihood.  

4.6 ‘Low’ scoring risks will be considered within the organisation’s risk appetite and no 

further action will be necessary.  

4.7 Whether a risk is within or outside the Council’s risk appetite will also be determined 

by the scoring applied to the risk.  All risks must be given a target score as well as the 

inherent and current scores. The target score will provide the level of risk that the 

Council is prepared to accept for that particular risk; hence it is important that the 

target score is subject to regular scrutiny separate from the risk owner. 

4.8 A target score should be set for each risk which is also determined in terms of impact 

and likelihood using the same scoring methodology and in line with the guidance 

above. The target score should be subject to regular review and group challenge to 

ensure that it remains appropriate.  

5. RESPOND TO RISK  

5.1 There are four possible options for responding to risk:  

 Transfer – the risk could, for example, be insured against or the activity could be 

outsourced. This may work well for financial impacts however, reputational 

impacts are unlikely to be effectively managed in this way 

 Tolerate – the current risk may be considered acceptable and no further action 

necessary. This will be the case if the current score is the same as the target score. 

It may, in exceptional circumstances, also be the case if the current score is higher 

than the target score but the Council deems that no further cost-effective controls 

or actions can be put into place. All such instances at service level should be 

discussed and agreed with the Director and those at Strategic level should be 

agreed by SMT as a whole.  

 Treat – further controls or additional actions are put into place to reduce the risk 

closer to the target score. These actions can be recorded on the risk assessment 

Page 89 Agenda Item 11



5 
 

template and must be recorded on the risk register so that they can be monitored 

until completion.  

 Terminate – stop the activity giving rise to the risk. This is unlikely to be a practical 

option for many Council services but may be relevant for projects / initiatives / 

contracts, where ongoing viability in relation to cost / benefits should be subject 

to continual challenge.  

6. RECORDING RISKS  

6.1 Risks at all levels must be recorded on a risk register. It is important that the same 

template is used across the organisation at all levels so that risks can be compared and 

aggregated.  

6.2 It is not necessary to record on the risk register every control identified through the 

risk assessment process but key controls should be recorded. (see definition within 

the Risk Management Strategy) 

6.3 Actions must be recorded on the risk register until they are closed; at this point they 

may be listed as a control.  

6.4 All risks must also be allocated an owner. At Strategic level, this should be a Director 

/ Chief Officer but a senior manager may be included as a joint owner. Service level 

risks will usually be owned by the service manager / Head of Service unless stated 

otherwise.  

7. MONITOR  

7.1 Risks must be regularly monitored to ensure that:  

 Scores (gross, residual and target) remain appropriate 

 Controls are in place and working as intended 

 Actions (where appropriate) are progressing as planned 

7.2 As part of the monitoring process, risk owners need to ensure that they have 

mechanisms in place to indicate whether or not controls are working and risks are 

being effectively managed to the desired level.  

7.3 As such, the risk register provides for available sources of assurances on the risk and 

control to be considered and noted. This will allow any gaps in assurance to be 

identified and addressed. Possible sources of assurance are recent or planned internal 

audits, external audit, management quality checks, progress reports, relevant key 

performance indicators, any external or internal reviews or inspections etc.  

7.4 It is the responsibility of the risk owner to monitor individual risks. However, as a 

collective, Leadership Team are responsible for monitoring the Strategic Risk Register.  

7.5 Service Managers / Heads of Service monitor Service Risk Registers but Directors are 

responsible for ensuring that this happens regularly and effectively in their areas. As 

Page 90Agenda Item 11



6 
 

a minimum, service risk registers should be monitored and reviewed alongside the 

development of the service plan and the development of the budget.  

8. REPORT 

8.1 The Strategic Risk Register is reported quarterly to Leadership Team and six monthly 

to Audit Board.  

8.2 The reporting process for Service Risk Registers is for individual Directors to determine 

within their Directorates. The Risk Strategy suggests that this could be achieved by: 

o Review and discussion at service management team meetings 

o Submission to the Director alongside Service Plans   

o Review and discussion with the Director during regular 121s. 

8.3 An aggregate report of all service risk registers will be presented annually to 

Leadership Team.    

8.4 Project risks should be reported to each project board.  

8.5 Risk reporting to Leadership Team and Audit Board will be co-ordinated by the Head 

of Finance with support from the Audit Manager.  

9. NATURAL BIASES 

9.1 Natural biases are a pitfall to be aware of at all stages in the risk management process 

and are a common cause for why risk management does not deliver the intended 

outcomes. These biases are one reason why group challenge / review / scrutiny is so 

important to the effectiveness of the risk management process. How many risk 

registers featured “pandemic” before 2020? Below are some possible biases to be 

aware of: 

If something has already happened then it is less likely to happen again  

Things will always happen in the way they do now 

Over reliance on historical information or events to make judgements 

Over estimation of highly visible or known occurrences at the expense of those that are less 
frequent 

Too much focus on short term or immediate risk at the expense of those that are more long 
term (climate change for example) 

Aversion to any risk  

Ignoring data that doesn’t fit with the desired outcome, such as data that does not fit with a 
business case  

 

10. TRAINING AND GUIDANCE 

10.1 Risk Management Training will be provided to service managers and Heads of Service 

via Service Managers Workshops.   

Page 91 Agenda Item 11



7 
 

10.2 Further advice and guidance on any aspect can be sought from Internal Audit, your 

Director or the Head of Finance.  

 

Page 92Agenda Item 11



8 
 

ANNEX A IMPACT MATRIX  

 Financial 
Service Delivery & 

Capability 
Reputation Legal & Regulatory People & culture 

Impact 
Headings 

Relating to uncontrolled 
expenditure or loss of 

income  

Relating to operational 
delivery of services / 

objectives 

May cause harm to public 
confidence or embarrassment 

Related to breaches of law, 
rules or governance 

May impact negatively on our 
workforce, culture or values 

Critical 
(5) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses in excess of 

multiple £m’s 
(Operational) Over £250K 

Failure to deliver statutory 
service / service disruption 

for >14 days 

National adverse publicity 
perceived as failing in a 

significant area of 
responsibility 

Breach of law, regulations 
leading to significant sanctions 
eg enforcement and penalties 

 
Breakdown of governance / 
internal control resulting in 

fraud, litigation and 
contractual risks   

Significant staff dissatisfaction  / 
increased long term absence & staff 

turnover 
 

Loss of culture and value framework 

Major 
(4) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses in excess of 
£1m+ overspend in budget 

by >£1m+ 
(Operational) £100, 001 to 

£250K 

Unable to deliver 
discretionary service / 

service disruption for >14 
days 

Sustained negative local media 
attention & damage to public 

confidence 

Breach of law or statutory 
duty leading to some sanction 

 
Breakdown of internal 
controls open to abuse 

Adverse staff dissatisfaction / likely 
increased absence and turnover of 

staff 
 

Negative impact on culture & value 
framework 

Moderate 
(3) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses between 
£500k - £1m / overspend 

in budget by >£500k 
(Operational) £25, 001 to 

£100,000 

Unsatisfactory service 
performance / service 
disruption of >5 days 

Isolated negative local 
publicity  

Breach of law or  or internal 
standards (limited sanctions) 

 
Isolated internal control 

weaknesses 

Declining staff dissatisfaction 
 

Isolated instances of behaviours 
outside of value framework 

Minor 
(2) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses between 

£100k - £500k / overspend 
in budget by >£100k 

(Operational) £10, 001 to 
£25, 000 

Reduced service delivery / 
service disruption for 7 

hours 

Local publicity, but 
manageable through 

communication channels 

Breach of internal policies 
 

Internal controls partially 
effective 

Isolated areas of staff dissatisfaction 
/ likely impact on absence and 

turnover 

P
age 93

A
genda Item

 11



9 
 

 Financial 
Service Delivery & 

Capability 
Reputation Legal & Regulatory People & culture 

Impact 
Headings 

Relating to uncontrolled 
expenditure or loss of 

income  

Relating to operational 
delivery of services / 

objectives 

May cause harm to public 
confidence or embarrassment 

Related to breaches of law, 
rules or governance 

May impact negatively on our 
workforce, culture or values 

Minimal 
 (1) 

(Strategic) Uncontrolled 
financial losses less than 

£100k / overspend in 
budget less than £100k 

(Operational) £10, 000 or 
less 

Disruption managed within 
normal day to day 

operations 

Unlikely to cause adverse 
publicity  

Breaches of internal 
procedures / working 

practices 

Loss of staff morale but unlikely to 
result in absence or turnover of staff 

 

P
age 94

A
genda Item

 11



10 
 

ANNEX B – LIKELIHOOD SCALES 

Very Likely = 5 

The council is experience problems in this are or expects to in the next 12 months 

No controls are in place. 

Likely = 4 

The council has experienced problems in this area in the past three years 

Controls may be in place but are generally ignored. 

Possible = 3 

The council has in the past experienced problems in this area but not in the past three years. 

Some controls are in place and generally work but there have been occasions when they have 

failed and problems have arisen. 

Unlikely = 2 

Previous experience discounts this risk as being likely but other orgs have experience 

problems in this area. 

There are controls in place that whilst not tested, appear to be effective 

Very Unlikely = 1 

Previous experience at this and other orgs makes this outcome highly unlikely to occur. 

There are effective, tested controls in place that prevent occurrence of this risk 

 

Page 95 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 96



 
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT (January 2022) 
 

1. Summary 
 
1.1. This report provides Members of the Audit Board with an update on Internal 

Audit outcomes and activity since the last report in September 2022.  It also 
presents information to facilitate Members’ oversight of the Internal Audit 
function.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That Members note the Internal Audit Update Report and updates (attached as 

Appendix A to the report). 
2.2      That Members approve the deferral of the Service Planning and Organisational      

Culture audits to the 2022/23 Internal Audit Plan as set out in Appendix A.  
 
 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1 Reporting the outcomes of the internal audit service is a requirement 
under the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (the Standards). As 
those charged with governance, the Audit Board is required through its 
Terms of Reference to provide oversight of the internal audit service. 

3.2 The Audit Board receives regular updates from the Internal Audit 
Partnership. Principally the focus of these updates is around the 
outcomes from internal audit work, progress against the audit plan and 
implementation of audit actions.   

3.3 The report also provides quality and performance information to allow 
Members oversight of the Internal Audit Service.  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 

4.1 Not directly applicable although all Internal Audit work is designed to 
support the achievement of the Council’s objectives.  

 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 
 

Financial Implications The Internal Audit Partnership is responsible for 
the delivery of the audit service. Delivery of the 
Audit Plan is already approved within the 
Council’s budget and so needs no new funding. 

Legal Implications 
Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015, the Council must ensure an effective 
system of Internal Audit.  

Page 97 Agenda Item 12



 
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 

Staffing Implications Use of Internal Audit resources are set out in 
the report (Appendix A).  

Administrative 
Implications 

There are no direct administrative implications 
associated with this decision.  

Risk Assessment 
The audit plan is risk-based. As such, the 
projects outlined in the plan have been 
prioritised based on the outcomes of each risk 
assessment.  

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 

 
6.1 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Internal Audit Update Report (January 2022) 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Documents consulted Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 

Previous Audit Board reports 
as published on the Council 
website.  
 
 

22/09/21 
 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343004 

Internal Audit 
Partnership 
 
& 
 
Corporate Services 
Directorate 
 

N/A 

 

Page 98Agenda Item 12



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Internal Audit Update 

Report 

 

26 January 2022 
  

Page 99 Agenda Item 12



2 
 

Introduction 

1) Internal Audit is an independent and objective assurance and consulting function. The shared 
team undertake reviews over the course of the year that are designed to evaluate and improve 
the Council’s internal control, governance and risk management processes. Each individual 
review contributes towards the Chief Audit Executive’s overall opinion on systems of risk 
management, governance and control provided at the end of the year.  

 
2) This interim report provides Members with an update on internal audit activity, and, most 

importantly, its outcomes, against the Plan that was agreed by Members of this Board in March 
2021. 

 
3) It also seeks to enable the Committee to discharge its responsibility to provide oversight of the 

quality and effectiveness of the Internal Audit Partnership. The Key Performance Indicators for 
Quarter 2 are provided in Annex D and an update on the Partnership’s Quality Action Plan is 
provided in Annex E.  
 

 

Internal Audit Progress Update – 2021/22 Plan 

 
4) The approved 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan is divided into two sections; Plan A contains the audits 

that are priorities for completion and Plan B contains additional audits that will be completed if 
resources allow. Plan A also contains one carry forward from 2020/21 (Rent Arrears) that was not 
sufficiently progressed by July 2021 to form part of the 2020/21 Annual Opinion.  

 
5) An overall summary of Internal Audit progress against both Plans as at 20 December 2021 is below 

in Annex A. We have made progress against Plan A with seven pieces of work (including the carry 
forward) fully complete and a further eight in fieldwork or reporting stages.  

 
6) Between 1 May 2021 and 31 October 2021, the Partnership was carrying a vacancy at Auditor 

level, but we are now pleased to welcome Helen Breytenbach to the Partnership as our 
Sevenoaks-employed Auditor since 1 November 2021. We have had some other staffing 
challenges; the Audit Manager left on 30 November but we have appointed to the post and the 
two Lead Auditors are acting up in the interim. There has also been a period of long-term sickness 
in the team.  

 
7) We have reviewed the current Audit Plan in light of changes within the Partnership and within 

the organisation itself. In our view, the Plan remains broadly fit for purpose and aligned to key 
risks. However we are proposing two changes which Members are asked to approve: 

 

 Deferral of the Service Planning audit until 2022/23. This is because new service plan 
templates have not yet been developed and rolled out and therefore it would be more 
appropriate this year to review the proposed design and provide assurance next year once 
these have been completed by services 

 Deferral of the Organisational Culture audit until 2022/23. This is because the Council is 
in the process of finalising and rolling out new behaviours for staff. It will be more effective 

Page 100Agenda Item 12



3 
 

for Internal Audit to review how well these are embedded six months post-
implementation.  

 

Internal Audit Outcomes 

8) The table below shows all final audit reports issued and the outcomes since the last report to 
Audit Board in September 2021. Summaries of these audits can be found in Annex B. Definitions 
of our assurance ratings are provided in Annex F. One of the primary functions of Internal Audit 
is to provide assurance that identified risks are being effectively managed and to this end, the 
table below also provides links between Internal Audit work and the current Strategic Risk 
Register. This does not mean that all controls have been covered as part of our audit but simply 
shows Members where they may be able to gain some assurance over the management of risk 
through our work. Members should be aware that the current Strategic Risk Register is also in the 
process of being updated.  
 
 

Audit Assurance Level Links to Strategic Risk Register where 
applicable – Risk reference and title 

Freedom of Information Reasonable No specific link  

Treasury Management Reasonable CP3 – Brexit has a negative impact on the 
Council’s finances (TM listed as mitigation) 

Dartford Private Leasing 
Scheme 

Limited HS5 – Failure to ensure high quality private 
sector housing within the Borough 

Temporary 
Accommodation 

Reasonable HS4 – Increase in homelessness 

Safeguarding Limited CP14 – Inadequate data sharing, data 
security and information management 

9) The chart below shows a breakdown of all audit assurance opinions to date for the 2021/22 
financial year. The chart will be continually updated for future progress reports to Audit Board.  

 

10) Members will note that the majority of audit work has received ‘Reasonable’ assurance. Since the 
last report to Audit Board, these ‘Reasonable’ assurances have included two audits in core 

Limited
29%

Reasonable
71%

ASSURANCE RATINGS

Limited Reasonable Substantial

Page 101 Agenda Item 12



4 
 

underpinning areas (Freedom of Information and Treasury Management). For Treasury 
Management, all key controls were in place and operating effectively; we raised one action to 
further mitigate human error which has been agreed by managers.  For Freedom of Information, 
similarly, there were processes in place which were largely adequate in design and compliant with 
statutory obligations. Our testing identified however that they were not fully effective in practice 
which was mainly due to some lower-quality responses and an unacceptably high proportion of 
staff who had not undertaken training within the Council’s stipulated timeframes. The Council 
does not have an appetite to issue FOI responses from a central point to ensure quality; 
consequently it will need to ensure that quality processes are embedded across the organisation.  
 

11) The final ‘Reasonable’ assurance audit was Temporary Accommodation. Currently, temporary 
accommodation is a high-risk, challenging area for the majority of Councils and our audit 
confirmed that the majority of risks are being managed well despite these challenges. Whilst 
individual cases were processed and monitored appropriately, the service would benefit from a 
longer term strategy to ensure the service can be delivered cost-effectively in the future.   

 
12) Two audits received ‘Limited’ assurance. One of these, Safeguarding, has organisation-wide 

relevance. Training was again an area for development in the Council’s arrangements; at the time 
of fieldwork a number of staff, including those in key roles, had not undertaken the required 
training. In the past, the Council has placed reliance on managers reviewing all mandatory training 
as part of the annual appraisal cycle but, as the Council changes its approach to staff performance 
management, it will also need to implement alternative controls for training and development. 
We recognise that since the end of our fieldwork, completion rates have increased as a result of 
renewed focus.  

 
13) Our audit of the Dartford Private Leasing Scheme also received ‘Limited’ assurance. Testing 

identified that it is a cost-effective means of providing temporary accommodation. Our concerns, 
however, were that controls were insufficiently robust to fully protect the Council’s interests, 
albeit that the scheme does need to be attractive to local landlords. Managers have agreed all 
actions raised and the majority are due to be implemented by the end of the financial year.  

 
14) Within the September Audit Board report, we stated that we had undertaken some work on 

specific Covid-related grants, including the ‘Restart’ and ‘Compliance and Enforcement’ grants as 
required by the relevant Central Government department. Since then, we have also reviewed the 
‘Test and Trace’ and ‘Green Homes’ grants. Again, our audit work confirmed that the money had 
been spent appropriately with no issues raised and, as such, we have provided the required 
assurance statements.  These pieces of work, whilst not forming part of the formal Internal Audit 
Plan, do of course allow us some insight into the adequacy and effectiveness of financial controls 
at the Council and will as such contribute towards the Annual Opinion.  

 
15) We have also undertaken a review of risk management processes and drafted a new Risk 

Management Framework, which is presented to Audit Board for approval as a separate agenda 
item. The aim of this Framework is to strengthen risk management arrangements, in particular 
so that they are more integrated across the organisation and easier to embed, both at strategic 
and service level.  

  

Page 102Agenda Item 12



5 
 

Follow Up 

16)  Internal Audit follows up all Critical, High, Medium and Low priority findings as they fall due. 
Annex C shows the results of our follow up process to date this financial year. There were no 
‘High’ priority actions due in Quarter 2. We have recently made changes to the follow up process 
to make it more robust. All requests to defer ‘High’ and ‘Medium’ priority actions for three 
months or more must first be approved by the relevant Director; we hope that this will encourage 
prompt implementation. Auditors are also ensuring that they discuss the realism of proposed 
implementation dates with managers before reports are finalised.  

 

17) Alongside the changes above, we have also changed the way that we calculate the relevant key 
performance indicator (page 19). In previous financial years, we discounted deferred actions from 
the calculation whereas for this financial year, we consider them as ‘not implemented’. This has 
of course resulted in a drop in the KPI figures presented but we consider the new methodology 
to be a more accurate representation of residual risks.  

 

Internal Audit Performance 

18) Audit Board has an important role to play in overseeing and ensuring the quality and effectiveness 
of Internal Audit, in order to assure themselves that Internal Audit makes a robust contribution 
to governance and that reliance can be placed on its conclusions. This oversight is facilitated 
through the Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme, which includes an action plan and 
performance indicators.  
 

19) Annex D contains the results of our Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for Quarter 2 (July – 
September).  These KPIs highlight that customer satisfaction remains good and that we are 
planning sufficiently in advance of audit fieldwork. The percentage of actions agreed with client’s 
actions is slightly down for this quarter, but this is due to one specific audit undertaken at Dartford 
Borough Council and is not indicative of an overall trend. The main area for action at this stage is 
the timeliness of audit delivery; the KPI shows that too few audit reports are issued by the date 
given on the audit brief.  We continue to explore root causes and address these in 121s and team 
meetings.  

 
20) The results of the various strands of our Quality Assurance activity combine into a single, 

overarching Quality Improvement Plan which is presented in Annex E (as at 30 November 2021). 
The Plan is divided into different themes encompassing internal audit activity but the 
fundamental objectives of the Plan are to move us into a position of being ‘Generally Conformant’ 
with the standards, improve service efficiency and to ensure that all audit work adds value to the 
Council. It is presented to Audit Board minimum six monthly and was last reported in July 2021.  

 
21) The current iteration shows that we have made some good progress against our actions, including 

review of core processes (in particular those which relate to reporting), development of a 
Customer Charter and provision of the majority of identified training. Some actions are behind 
schedule, which is mainly due to the change in Audit Manager; it would not be appropriate, for 
example, to develop an Audit Strategy until the new manager is in post. A further update will be 
presented to Members as part of the Annual Report in July 2022. 
 

Page 103 Agenda Item 12



6 
 

 

Conclusion  

22) We have commenced our work on the 2021/22 Internal Audit Plan and have made some steady 
progress, with seven final reports issued and a further eight in fieldwork or reporting stages. We 
have seen some staffing changes with the departure of the Audit Manager and the arrival of the 
Auditor.  At this stage in the financial year, on the basis of both the assurance and consultancy 
work completed to date and the outcomes of follow up activity, my interim overall opinion on 
systems of risk management, governance and control continues to be ‘Reasonable’ in line with 
the opinion provided in July 2021.  

 
23) We would like to thank Officers, Managers and Members for their ongoing support and co-

operation to enable us to deliver our work. 
 

Francesca Chivers, CMIIA 

Audit Manager 

  

Page 104Agenda Item 12



7 
 

 Annex A – Internal Audit Plan 2021/22 

Plan A 
2021/22 Audit Title Type Current Status 

Assurance 

c/f 
2020/21 

Rent Collection / Rent Arrears 
(Current Tenants) 

Assurance Complete Reasonable 

1 Business Continuity Assurance Feedback  

2 Case Management Assurance Not yet started  

3 Freedom of Information / 
Environmental Information  

Assurance Complete Reasonable 

4 Dartford Private Leasing 
Scheme 

Assurance Complete Limited 

5 Organisational Culture Assurance Proposed to defer  

6 Assurance Mapping  Consultancy Fieldwork  

7 Fraud Risk Assessment Consultancy Planning  

8 IT Governance Assurance Planning  

9 Safeguarding Assurance Complete Limited 

10 Treasury Management Assurance Complete Reasonable 

11 Information Security Assurance Planning  

12 Staff Wellbeing Assurance Fieldwork  

13 Covid-19 Recovery Assurance Planning  

14 Environmental Enforcement Assurance Planning  

15 Temporary Accommodation Assurance Complete Reasonable 

16 Consultation Assurance Feedback  

17 Asset Management Assurance Not yet started  

18 Environmental Health - New 
Service Review 

Assurance Not yet started  

19 Covid-19 Response Assurance Planning  

20  Data Protection Act 2018 Consultancy Fieldwork  

21 Waivers Assurance Complete Reasonable 

22 Disaster Recovery Assurance Planning  

23 Emergency Planning Assurance Not yet started  

24 Planned Maintenance - 
Statutory Compliance  

Assurance Planning  

25 Corporate Project Governance 
- Acacia Hall 

Assurance Draft Report 
Issued 

 

26 Service Planning Assurance Proposed to defer  

27 Community Infrastructure Levy Assurance Not yet started  

28 Council Tax and Enforcement 
(shared) 

Assurance 
and 
Consultancy 

Fieldwork  

29 IR35 Assurance Not yet started  

Plan B 
2021/22 Audit Title Type Current Status 

 

1 Council Tax Reduction Scheme Assurance Not yet started  

2 Discretionary Powers Assurance Not yet started  

Page 105 Agenda Item 12



8 
 

3 Corporate Complaints Assurance Not yet started  

4 Workforce Development / 
Talent Management / 
Succession Planning  

Assurance Not yet started  

5 Performance Management 
Framework Assurance Not yet started 

 

6 Waste Contract Consultancy  Not yet started  

7 Procurement Assurance Fieldwork  

8 Parking Enforcement  Assurance Not yet started  

9 Equality and Diversity  Assurance Not yet started  

10 Private Sector Discretionary 
Assistance Policy  

Assurance Not yet started  

11 Acquisition and Disposal Assurance Not yet started  

12 Commercial Lease 
Management 

Assurance Not yet started  

13 Town Centre Improvement 
Scheme 

Assurance Not yet started  

  

  

Page 106Agenda Item 12



9 
 

Annex B - Summaries of Audit Reports issued 

Freedom of Information (Reasonable Assurance) – Issued in September 2021 

The objective of this audit was to review the effectiveness of controls to respond to Freedom of 

Information (FOI) and Environment Information Regulation (EIR) requests, and to ensure responses 

adhere to the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA) and the Environment Information Regulations 

2004.  

Our review found the process for recording and responding to FOI requests was generally adequate in 

design. Appropriate system parameters are set up for reminding assigned managers of FOI/EIR responses 

that are due. Information on Business Rates was also published on the Council website as a result of 

multiple FOI requests.  

However, we found responses to FOI requests require improvement. Our testing showed responses do 

not always provide the additional information required by legislation. There was also a lack of quality in 

responses, such as illogical sentences, spelling, punctuation and grammar.  

We found detailed guidance and templates available on the intranet which could benefit from a review 

to ensure they are current and adhere to legislation.  

The table below shows the actions raised and management’s response: 

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

Risks accepted 
by management 

Medium 2 1 1 

Low 2 1.5 0.5 

Advisory 1 1 NA 

Total 5 3.5 1.5 

 

Treasury Management (Reasonable Assurance) – Issued in November 2021 

The objective of the audit was to review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of 
internal controls designed and placed into operation in respect of Treasury Management in order to 
manage financial and non-financial risks.  
 
The Local Government Act 2003 requires councils to “have regard to the Prudential Code and to set 
Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment plans are 
affordable, prudent and sustainable”. Under this legislation Dartford Borough Council (‘the Council’) is 
required to set out its Treasury Strategy for borrowing and to prepare an Annual Investment Strategy.  
 
Day to day responsibility for this area rests with the Principal Accountant and is overseen by the Head of 
Finance and the Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services. The Finance function reports to the 
Treasury Management Panel three times per year for regular monitoring. Investments are recorded on 
the daily banking spreadsheet and the Logotech system. No recent borrowings have taken place at the 
Council. In this review, we considered the outstanding borrowing made in 2012 by the Public Works Loan 
Board (PWLB) for the Council to self-finance the housing revenue account.  
 
We noted the following areas of key strengths:  

Page 107 Agenda Item 12



10 
 

•  The Treasury Management Statement 2021/22 documents the borrowing and investment 
strategies of the Council.  

•  The Treasury Management Practices and Principles document sets out detailed procedures which 
act as guidance for the finance team to follow.  

•  Approved counterparties by Arlingclose (the Council’s external treasury advisor) and their 
investment limits have been compiled into a master Counterparty List, last updated on 31 August 
2021. This list also contains their credit ratings and rates of return.  

•  Monthly reconciliations between interest received on the financial system and the daily banking 
spreadsheet are carried out by the Principal Accountant. All transactions on the daily banking 
sheet are also then reconciled to the Logotech system.  

•  A detailed repayment plan until 2039 for the borrowing made from PWLB in 2012 is also in place.  

•  Monthly treasury position updates are sent to the Head of Finance and the Chief Officer and 
Director of Corporate Services. Treasury performance is reported to the Treasury Management 
Panel (TMP) three times per year. The Cabinet also receives annual treasury reports with key 
treasury indicators.  

•  Access to the Logotech system is restricted to appropriate staff at the Council.  
 
Key area for development:  
 

•  A breach to the Money Market Fund (MMF) investment limit on one fund occurred in March 2021. 
To counter this, limits on the ICD online trading platform based on Council’s fund limits should be 
considered.  

 
We have raised one recommendation resulting from our testing. The priority rating of this action is set 

out below. 

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

Risks accepted 
by management 

Medium 1 1 0 

Low 0 0 0 

Advisory 0 0 0 

Total 1 1 0 

 

Dartford Private Leasing Scheme (Limited Assurance) – Issued in November 2021 

The purpose of this review was to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls in place over 

the Dartford Private Leasing Scheme. In particular, to assess if the Council is suitably mitigating 

against the risk of disputes to ensure the scheme remains a viable / cost effective mechanism to 

provide temporary accommodation.  

Strengths 

 The application pack provides prospective landlords with a general overview.   

Page 108Agenda Item 12



11 
 

 Signed leases were on file for the sample of 10 properties tested.  

 Inspections are carried out ahead of taking on the property. 

 Procedures are in place for rent increases.  

 

Areas for development 

 Inventory photos are not agreed or signed by the landlord, nor are they supported by an 

itemised list which increases the risk of disputes.  

 Inspections throughout the term of the lease are not currently carried out so potential issues 

are not being identified which could create additional costs to the Council in the long run.  

 There is no requirement for the landlord to periodically provide confirmation of their 

insurance and gas cover, and similarly this is not monitored.  

 There are gaps and inconsistencies in the records maintained. In some cases hard copies are 

the only record held of key documents such as the signed lease, so if they were lost or 

damaged, there is no other mechanism to retrieve them.  

 The lease is unclear over key areas such as repairs and maintenance which increases the risk 

of challenges and disputes.  

 The methodology to calculate rent increases as set out in the lease has not been applied in 

practice, meaning the Council has both underpaid and overpaid its landlords.  

 The application form and declaration requires improvement to alleviate the risk of challenges 

and to aid monitoring of insurance and gas cover.  

 

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

Risks accepted 
by management 

Critical 0 NA NA 

High 1 1 0 

Medium 7 7 0 

Low 1 1 0 

Advisory 1 1 0 

Total 10 10 0 

 

Temporary Accommodation (Reasonable Assurance) – Issued in December 2021 

The purpose of this review was to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of controls in place over 

temporary accommodation. In particular, to assess the Council’s strategy and approach for providing 

temporary accommodation to ensure arrangements are sufficient to manage demand and meet the 

homelessness duty.  

Strengths 

 Assessment processes are robust to ensure the Council provides support to those in need to 

meet its duty under the regulations.  

 Clients are placed in suitable accommodation commensurate with their needs and supported 

to secure more permanent accommodation.  

Page 109 Agenda Item 12



12 
 

 System functionality coupled with case reviews enables sufficient monitoring. 

 The Council has access to a variety of properties for the provision of temporary 

accommodation.  

 The private leasing scheme provides a cost effective alternative for nightly paid 

accommodation.  

Areas for development   

 A documented strategy to future proof the service and the provision of temporary 

accommodation is not in place.  

 Arrangements with providers are not formalised and limited arrangements are in place to 

confirm the condition of properties used for temporary accommodation.   

 There are inconsistencies in the notes and actions recorded on the journal on Locata, so the 

decision may not be fully supported in the event of a challenge. 

 

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

Risks accepted 
by management 

Critical 0 NA NA 

High 0 NA NA 

Medium 2 2 0 

Low 2 2 0 

Advisory 0 0 0 

Total 4 4 0 

 

Safeguarding (Limited Assurance) – Issued in December 2021  

The purpose of this review was to provide assurance on the processes around the Council’s 

arrangements in place to safeguard children and adults at risk from abuse, neglect or exploitation. 

Strengths. 

 The Council has a suitably detailed Safeguarding Policy in place which clearly explains the 

importance of Safeguarding, what it constitutes, and the roles and responsibilities of not only 

the Council as a whole, but also that of every Elected Member, Officer and Contractor working 

for or on behalf of the Council.  

 Clear and concise guidance is readily available to officers setting out the actions which should 

and should not be taken in the event of a potential Safeguarding concern becoming evident. 

 Besides comprehensive written guidance being available to officers, Safeguarding leads are 

also available to give advice and guidance to officers on Safeguarding concerns and queries 

as necessary. 

 The Safeguarding Steering Group meet regularly; roles and responsibilities for members of 

the Group are suitably documented both in the Safeguarding Policy and also in the job 

descriptions for the individuals that sit on the Group. 

 All new appointments are subject to a basic DBS check regardless of the role. 

Page 110Agenda Item 12



13 
 

A number of areas for development were identified during the course of the audit which require 

management attention to build on and improve existing controls around Safeguarding;  

 The Safeguarding Policy has not received Elected Member Approval since 2007. 

 At the time of fieldwork, an unacceptably high proportion of officers have not completed the 

Level 1 Safeguarding training which is mandatory for all officers regardless of role within the 

Council. 

 Roles requiring Level 2 Safeguarding training are yet to be identified, consequently no officers 

have completed Level 2 Safeguarding Training. Similarly, no members of the Safeguarding 

Steering Group have completed Level 3 Safeguarding training. 

 No Elected Members have completed Level 1 Safeguarding training. 

 There are differences between the numbers of safeguarding referrals recorded on the 

Council’s internal safeguarding referral log compared to those received from the Council by 

Kent County Council (KCC). 

 A large proportion of basic DBS checks for relevant roles have not been renewed. 

 

Detailed below is a summary of our actions and management response:  

Priority Ranking 
Number of audit 

actions 
Actions agreed 

Risks accepted 
by management 

Critical 0 NA NA 

High 4 4 0 

Medium 1 1 0 

Low 0 NA NA 

Advisory 0 NA NA 

Total 5 5 0 

 

 

Page 111 Agenda Item 12



14 
 

Annex C -Audit actions  

We raise recommendations to assist management in addressing control failings, or to suggest service improvements following the results of our 

testing. In accordance with our follow-up process all audit actions are tracked and followed up when they fall due. The table below shows all 

audits with open actions from April 2021 to the date of writing. Column E indicates which of these were due between July and September 2021, 

which we have now followed up. Columns G and H give a summary of that follow up process: 

A-Project  
  

B-Service  
Manager  

C-Report Issue 
Date & Rating  

D-Agreed 
actions in 

Final Report  

E-Actions 
due Q2  

F-Not 
yet due  

G-Closed 
Q2 

H-Deferrals 
this Qtr.  

I-Total 
actions 

closed to 
date  

J-Total 
actions 

outstanding1  

Post GDPR Review 2018/19  
Sarah Martin / IT 

Services  
June 2019  
Substantial 

5  1 (M) 0  0  0  4  1  

Accounts Receivable 
2019/20 

Tim Sams 
April 2020 

Full 
3 1 (L) 0 0 0 2 1 

Garage Management 
2019/20 

Paul Koster 
August 2020 
Substantial 

3 0 1 (M) 0 0 2 1 

Dartford Town Against Crime 
2020/21 

Anthony Henley 
December 2020 

Substantial 
4 0 

1 (M), 1 
(L) 

0 0 2 2 

New Build Capital 
Programme 2020/21 

Peter Dosad 
February 2021 

Substantial 
3 0 1 (M) 0 0 2 1 

Budget Setting 2020/21 Tim Sams 
February 2021 

Substantial  
2 1 (M), 1 (L) 0 1 (M), 1 (L) 0 2 0 

Local Air Quality 
Management 2020/21 

Annie Sargent 
March 2021 

Limited 
6 2 (M) 1 (H) 2 (M) 0 5 1 

                                                           
1 Projects with 0 actions outstanding will be removed from future reports and be closed 

 

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 12



15 
 

A-Project  
  

B-Service  
Manager  

C-Report Issue 
Date & Rating  

D-Agreed 
actions in 

Final Report  

E-Actions 
due Q2  

F-Not 
yet due  

G-Closed 
Q2 

H-Deferrals 
this Qtr.  

I-Total 
actions 

closed to 
date  

J-Total 
actions 

outstanding1  

Waste Collection & Street 
Cleansing 2020/21 

Dave Thomas 
May 2021 

Limited 
10 2(M) 2(M) 2 (M) 0 8 2 

Change Control 2020/21 Sarah Martin 
May 2021 

Limited 
10 0 

2(H), 
4(M) 

0 0 4 6 

Contract Management 
2020/21 

Tim Sams 
June 2021 

Limited 
4 0 4 (M) 0 0 0 4 

Reactive Repairs 2020/21 Paul Koster 
July 2021 

Substantial 
1 0 1 (M) 0 0 0 1 

Housing Benefits 2020/21 
(shared) 

Heather Gaynor 
July 2021 

Substantial 
2 1 (L) 1(M) 1 (L) 0 1 1 

Contract Waivers 2021/22 Toby Cobbin 
July 2021 

Reasonable 
4 3 (M) 1 (M) 2 (M) 1 (M) 2 2 

Planning Administration 
Fees 2020/21 

Sonia Collins 
August 2021 
Substantial 

3 0 
1 (M), 

2(L) 
0 0 0 3 

Rent Collection & Arrears 
2020/21 

David Edie 
August 2021 
Substantial 

2 0 2 (M) 0 0 0 2 

Freedom of Information 
2021/22 

Sarah Martin 
September 2021 

Reasonable 
3 1 (M), 2 (L) 0 2 (L) 1 (M) 2 1 

    TOTAL  65 15 25 11 2 36 29 

Based on the results of our follow-up work, there are 29 ‘live’ actions that we are actively tracking and monitoring. We will report progress on 

the implementation of these actions as they fall due, as part of this regular summary report.  

  

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 12



16 
 

Deferrals 
This table shows the two audit actions that have been deferred or are in progress beyond the due date. Officers have been asked to provide an 

update on progress, and the reason for the deferral: 

Project Action (including priority) 
Original 

agreed date 
Revised 

date 
Reason for deferral 

No. of 
times 

deferred 

Contract Waivers 
2021/22 

2. Justifications for a 
Contract Waiver (Medium) 

30/9/21 31/12/21 

Manager’s Comments: 
This action is partially complete.  Any new procurement training provided has 
included contract waivers, but the next corporate procurement meeting is yet to be 
arranged. The Senior Finance and Procurement Officer is hoping to do an in-person or 
virtual (MS Teams) procurement meeting by the end of December, but if the 
response from procuring officers is poor, the information will be provided via a 
procurement newsletter, with a section dedicated to waivers, and circulated to 
relevant officers. Deferral of this action has been approved by the Chief Officer and 
Director of Corporate Services. 
 
Audit Comments: 
Based on the information above this action has been deferred until the end of 
December 2021. 
 

1 

Freedom of 
Information 

2021/22 

1. Mandatory Training 30/9/21 30/11/21 

Manager’s Comments: 
We are in the process of agreeing a new appraisal process but this has not yet been 
finalised. The HR Manager is also looking at upgrading our e-learning system. 
Proposed deferral until the end of November 2021 (Chief Officer and Director of 
Corporate Services). 
 
Audit Comments: 
Based on the information above this action has been deferred until the end of 
November 2021 
 

1 

 

 

  

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 12



17 
 

Outstanding Actions not deferred / no response to follow up 
This table shows the two audit action that remains outstanding. Officers have been asked to provide an update on progress, and the reason for 

the delay: 

 

Project 
Action (including 
priority) 

Original agreed date Responsible Officer 
No. of times previously 
deferred 

Comments 

Post GDPR Review 2018/19 
1. Automatic Deletion of 

Data (Medium) 
31/12/19 Sarah Martin 1 

Action remains open at the 
request of the Chief Officer and 
Director of Corporate Services 
until it can be discussed with 

the new IT Manager 

 

Accounts Receivable 2019/20 3. Recovery of Debt (Low) 30/11/20 Toby Cobbin 3 

The action remains open as the 
service are currently in 

discussions with individual 
departments on the available 

recovery options for 
departmental receivables.  

 

 

 

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 12



18 
 

Annex D – Key Performance Indicators for Q2 (July – Sept) 

Finance: Associated performance indicators Q2 (July - September) 

F1: Percentage of budgeted days taken to complete projects – Target 100%  Reported on a cumulative basis 

Indicator measures any variance between the days agreed on the final brief vs. the actual time coded 

158% 

F2: Chargeable days – Target 75%  Reported on a quarterly basis 

Indicator measures the actual chargeable activities against the assumptions made in the audit plan 

Average 74% 

F3: PSIAS conformance – Target ‘Generally Conforms’ (IIA definition)Reported annually  

Indicator measures effectiveness of the Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme (QAIP) to ensure 

compliance with professional Standards.  

To be reported at the end of 

2021/22 

Client satisfaction: Associated performance indicators Q2 (July – September) 

C1: Respondents satisfied with the overall audit experience – Target 90% Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures Client satisfaction with how we undertook the work, and takes into account our 

professionalism, approach and competence  

9/9 100% 

C2: Respondents agreement with the audit actions – Target 90% Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures Client agreement to the audit findings and resulting actions from our audit work 

 

21.5/23  94% 

 

P
age 116

A
genda Item

 12



19 
 

Internal processes: Associated performance indicators Q2 (July – September) 

I1: Percentage of draft audit briefs issued at least 10 working days before the start of fieldwork.  - Target 90%   

Reported on a project by project basis 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our project planning and communications with the client 

12/12 100% 

I2: Percentage of draft audit reports issued by the date given on the final audit brief  - Target 70% Reported on a 

project by project basis 

Indicator measures the efficiency of our audit work, currency of our audit finding and effective engagement 

between Auditors and Clients  

2/7 28% 

I3: Time taken between issue of the DRAFT report and FINAL report – Target 15 working days  Reported on a 

project by project basis 

Indicator measures the effectiveness of our process to finalise audit reports and issue the report in a timely 

manner  

6/9 66% 

Learning & Development: Associated performance indicators Q2 (July – September) 

L1: Audit actions fully implemented within agreed timescales – Target 80%  Reported on a monthly basis 

Indicator measures the successful implementation of audit actions and the effectiveness of our follow-up process 

 

July – 12/20 = 60% 

August – 3/3 = 100% 

September – 3/5 = 60% 

L2: Training & development days  - Reported annually 

Indicator measures our investment and time spent on training and development against the assumptions made in 

the audit plan 

28.29 Days  
(annual budget of 29 days) 

P
age 117

A
genda Item

 12



20 
 

Annex E – Quality Action Plan 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 

Reporting Review the assurance levels for individual 
reports. 

To be introduced for financial year 
2021/22. 

Complete 

Reporting Review the assurance levels for the Annual 
Opinion.  

Graded opinion to be provided for 
2020/21.  

Complete 

Reporting Review report format to ensure that it is fit 
for purpose but “lean” – only containing 
elements that add value to the customer. 
Include guidance notes. 

To be introduced for financial year 
2021/22. 

Complete but continue to monitor - Report 
format has been reviewed, including 
guidance notes, and rolled out to team in 
March 2021 team meeting. If report 
timeliness and initial quality does not 
improve following additional training, may 
need to consider amending further by 
streamlining again and removing detailed 
findings section - this will require 
stakeholder consultation.  

Reporting Deliver report writing training in team 
meeting session.  

Jul-21 Complete 

Reporting Deliver root cause analysis training in team 
meeting session.  

Aug-21 Behind schedule as did wellbeing, critical 
thinking and review of audit documentation. 
Will not be complete by end of calendar 
year. 

Reporting Review action priority levels. April 2022 Not yet started. 

Reporting Review the Annual Opinion report template 
and contents to ensure that IA reports to 
committee are more strategic and focused 
on outcomes / key themes and issues. 

Jul-21 Complete 

P
age 118

A
genda Item

 12



21 
 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 

Co-ordination of 
Assurance 

Develop assurance maps for both 
organisations 
a) Discuss other forms of assurance as part of 
2021/22 Audit Planning 
b) Add assurance maps to both Plans for 
2021/22. 

Complete by March 2022. In progress - Outline complete but requires 
further checking with Managers as part of 
2022/23 Planning Process. 

Co-ordination of 
Assurance 

Develop relationships with EA 
1) Set up regular liaison meetings (every 4 
months?).  

For 2021/22 financial year with 
new EA personnel. 

Not yet commenced.  

Planning Develop more risk-based method for 
2021/22 periodic planning. 

For 2021/22 financial year. 2021/22 IA Plan was better developed and 
more relevant, however further refinements 
needed for 2022/23. Review again 
December 2021.  

Planning Maintain under review the approach to 
periodic planning - annually or quarterly / six 
monthly. 

Review again for 2022/23. Review and re consider for 2022/23. 

Planning Develop Audit Strategy for the partnership. Sep-21 Due to departure of Audit Manager, this will 
not be complete until new Audit Manager in 
post and embedded. 

Planning Undertake Culture / Ethics / IT Governance 
Audits. 

March 2022 (for completion of 
2021/22 audits). 

IT Governance audits on both Plans for 
2021/22. Culture on DBC audit plan. Ethical 
Governance was on SDC Audit Plan but due 
to departure of Audit Manager is proposed 
to be deferred until 2022/23.   

Planning Develop mechanism and allocate 
responsibilities to team members to keep 
knowledge of key parts of the sector up to 
date, share updates with team as a whole.  

Oct-21 Focus at present is on core audit work, not 
yet discussed with the team.  

Data Analysis Provide Excel training to the team.  Dec-20 Complete - basic data analysis provided over 
2 sessions in house and further 1 day 
external course. Need to review further 
options once skills matrix complete. 

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 12



22 
 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 

Data Analysis Arrange demonstration of data analysis 
software. 

Dec-20 Complete 

Data Analysis Add data analysis to team objectives. Dec-20 Complete 

Data Analysis Add to planning checklist to enforce that it is 
considered as part of every audit and that 
non-use is justified – done. 

Dec-20 Complete 

Data Analysis ‘Continual’ assurance using analysis of data 
will be trialled as part of the 2021/22 Plans. 

Complete by March 2022. Audits on Plans, individual audits not yet 
commenced. 

Data Analysis Draft data analysis strategy will be prepared 
by September 2021 (including identification 
of potential costs) and shared with the s151 
officers for agreement of any additional 
funds required, specifically for training or 
software. 

Sep-21 Not yet commenced - difficult at present 
due to staff changes and as other audit skills 
need to be fully developed first.   

Performance 
Management  

Review suite of KPIs to ensure they measure 
what we need to know and want to improve. 

Needs to be in place for 2021/22. Complete 

Performance 
Management  

Review calculation of CSQ measure. Needs to be in place for 2021/22. Complete 

Performance 
Management  

Quality of work including specific standards, 
competencies, deliverables and performance 
measures to be set out in a new suite of 
objectives for the auditors. 

Dec-20 Complete 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

All team members to undertake skills gap 
analysis against the IIA competency 
framework. 

May-21 Complete 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Training plan for 2021/22 to be developed 
(reliant on completion of the above action). 

Jul-21 In progress. 

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 12



23 
 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Develop a Customer Charter that sets out 
clear expectations for audit staff and clients. 
Include expectation that customers will be 
given 2 weeks to comment on draft report.  

To be in place for April 2021. Complete, ongoing need to remind staff of 
the commitments in the Charter and to 
ensure they are communicating with clients. 
Charter to be reviewed in team meeting 24 
November. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

All staff to continue to complete self-
assessments at the end of individual audits 
to identify actions for improvement going 
forwards. 

For 2020/21 audits onwards. In progress and ongoing. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Training on project planning audits to be 
delivered as part of team meeting. 

May-21 Complete - delivered over two sessions - 
April and May 2021. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Weekly 121s and action plans. November 2020 onwards. In progress and ongoing. 

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Identical audits across both sites to be 
allocated to same team member. 
Some 'task based' teams will be deployed for 
bigger audits in 2021/22 - Ethical 
Governance and Culture, will use agile 
techniques such as daily catch ups and 
specific task based timings.  
'Site based' approach will be considered 
where practical.  

Complete by March 2022. In progress. Audit allocations are complete 
and where possible, identical audits have 
been allocated to same staff member.  
Small teams allocated to Ethical Governance 
and Culture, FC to lead and adopt task-
based, agile approach but EG now deferred. 
'Site' approach to be considered as relevant 
when staff return to office.  

Quality and 
timeliness of audit 
work (also links to 
Performance 
Management above) 

Review and update the Audit Manual.  Sep-21 Complete 

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 12



24 
 

Theme Action  Target Date Status Update 

IA Charters Review Audit Charters for both 
organisations. 

Audit Committee / Board March 
2022. 

Complete 

Data Retention  Review and update the information asset 
register / data retention schedule.  

May-21 Complete 

Remote Working Complete Lessons Learned review of the past 
year as part of team meeting session. 

Apr-21 Complete 

Follow Ups Review the follow up process and consider 
whether quarterly would be more efficient 
than monthly. 

Apr-21 Reviewed as a team but due to KPI and 
other reporting, decided to remain 'as is' at 
the moment, but training to be provided to 
the team May 2021 and auditors asked to 
be more 'smart' with implementation dates 
– e.g. try to have the same date for multiple 
recommendations where possible. Review 
again in October 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 12



25 
 

Annex F - Definitions of Assurance ratings: 

   

OPINION DEFINITIONS 

Substantial Assurance 

 

 
A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, 
with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area 
audited. 
 

 

Reasonable Assurance 

 

  
There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 
and control in place.  
 
Some issues, non-compliance or scope for improvement were 
identified which may put at risk the achievement of objectives in 
the area audited. 
 

 

Limited Assurance 

 
Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified.  
 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

No Assurance 

  
Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified.  
 
The system of governance, risk management and control is 
inadequate to effectively manage risks to the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 123 Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 124



 
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS 

 

1. Summary 

 

1.1 After the July 2021 meeting of the Board, the Chairman selected five creditor 
payments for checking. Due to the quarter three meeting being held early (in 
September), it was decided to report these checks to the Board in January 
2022 along with the five creditor payments selected at the September 2021 
meeting. This report summarises the findings of those exercises. 
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  That Members note the content of this report and request any further 

explanations as required. 

2.2  That Members select five further payments for checking by Internal Audit. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review. Following review 
of these payments, Members receive a report on the findings, and 
consider them as part of each meeting. This is intended to provide 
Members with reasonable assurance that goods and services 
commissioned or procured, for which payments have been made, are in 
compliance with Council procedures. In particular, that they have been 
properly authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making 
payment. 

3.2. The following approach towards selection of the invoices has been  
agreed:  

Meeting SIC Selection 
Transaction Report 

Parameters 

Q1 (April – June) A B C D E F Jan to March 

Q2 (July – September) G H I J K L M April – June 

Q3 (October – 
December) 

N O P Q R S July – September 

Q4 (January – March) T U V W X Y Z October – December 

 
3.3. The following ten payments were selected at random: 

 G A Evans Aerials Ltd     £1,348.80 (Gross) 
 Ghyllside Ltd               £7,512.00 (Gross) 
 JGP Resourcing Ltd       £9,292.80 (Gross) 
 Michael Rogers LLP    £18,000.00 (Gross) 
 Multilink Access Control Systems Ltd  £630.00 (Gross) 
 Oxford Innovation Ltd    £17,768.18 (Gross) 
 Protech Environmental    £435.00 (Gross) 
 Smye Rumsby     £51.00 (Gross) 

Page 125 Agenda Item 13



 
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
 South East Employers    £5,100.00 (Gross) 
 STRIB007      £480.32 (Gross) 

 
4. Summary of Findings 

 
4.1 The results of testing confirm that in all cases, the spend decisions were 

made appropriately and in compliance with Council procedures. This 
sees improvement following guidance issued to staff in March 2021, 
however it will continue to be monitored to ensure compliance. Detailed 
summaries of the outcome of each payment are set out below. 
 

5. Detailed Findings 

5.1 G A Evans Aerials Ltd (£1,348.80 gross) – This payment was for the 
call out and execution of essential works to four addresses in the 
borough during March 2021. Two were planned maintenance jobs to 
secure wiring and remove old equipment, and the other two were for 
responsive repairs, following requests from tenants.  

Quotes for the planned maintenance work were obtained in advance, in 
compliance with procurement rules, but prices were not agreed in 
advance of the work being carried out for the responsive repairs work.   

The Council has engaged this company over many years to maintain the 
aerials systems in its housing stock without a formal contract, and 
although the annual spend is less than the requirement for a formal 
contract, the cumulative spend over three years takes it over the 
threshold for requiring one.  

A similar issue was identified and reported in the Selective Invoice 
Checks to Audit Board in April 2018, where Internal Audit had advised 
the Housing Maintenance Manager, that a schedule of rates contract 
should be sought, as the unpredictable nature of responsive repair work 
did not lend itself to a typical style of contract”. However, this was not 
undertaken as agreed.  

The Building Services Surveyor has agreed to procure a Schedule of 
Rates agreement within the current financial year.  

A purchase order was not required in this instance, in accordance with 
the Council's Purchase Orders Exemption List. Our review confirmed 
that the payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with 
payment procedures, but not procurement procedures. 

5.2 Ghyllside Ltd (£7,512.00 gross) – This payment was for the supply and 
installation of a wheelchair ramp to a Council owned property in the 
borough.  The ramp was part of larger works, for a side extension to the 
property following an Occupational Therapy recommendation. A 
purchase order was raised via the Council's e-Procurement system.  The 
invoice was paid within five days of receipt. Testing confirmed that the 

Page 126Agenda Item 13



 
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with 
procurement and payment procedures.  

5.3 JGP Resourcing Ltd (£9,292.80 gross) – This payment was for the 
renewal of the annual subscription for the Jobs Go Public website and 
their associated recruitment applications (including the applicant 
tracking system) for 2021/22. A purchase order was raised via the 
Council's e-Procurement system. The invoice was paid within 13 
working days of receipt. Testing confirmed that the payment was 
justified, made promptly and in accordance with procurement and 
payment procedures. 

5.4 Michael Rogers LLP (£18,000.00 gross) - This payment was for the 
insurance valuation of council assets as part of the Council's year-end 
process.  A contract with Michael Rogers was previously in place for 
these services, which ended in July 2020. However, the price provided 
by Michael Rogers for 2021 was more favourable than the price obtained 
during formal tendering for the property services contract. Property 
Services has since been brought back in-house and Finance envisage 
that the Property Services team will deal with future valuations. A 
purchase order was raised via the Council's e-Procurement system. The 
invoice was paid within 16 working days of receipt. Testing confirmed 
that the payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with 
procurement and payment procedures.  

5.5 Multilink Access Control Systems Ltd (£630.00 gross) - This payment 
was for the supply of two packs of 50 graphic quality access cards (staff 
photo access cards for the Civic Centre) in April 2021. A purchase order 
was raised via the Council's e-Procurement system. The quantity 
ordered was due to the pack size, and to offset the cost of the £15.00 
postage. The invoice was paid within nine working days of receipt. 
Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with procurement and payment procedures. 

5.6 Oxford Innovation Ltd (£17,768.18 gross) - This payment was for the 
monthly operational and maintenance costs for the Nucleus Innovation 
Centre, for the month of August 2021. Oxford Innovation Ltd are 
contracted to manage the innovation centre on behalf of the Council and 
its partnership with Prologis. A purchase order was not necessary in this 
instance as the payment was for the reimbursement of costs incurred by 
Oxford Innovation Ltd in maintaining the centre. The invoice was paid 
promptly within three working days of receipt. Testing confirmed that the 
payment was justified, made promptly and in accordance with payment 
procedures. 

5.7 Protech Environmental (£435.00 gross) - This payment was for the 
employment of a temporary member of staff in the Council's 
Environmental Protection Team. The payment was for working 14.5 
hours (over two days) during the week ending 20/7/21.  A purchase order 
was raised via the Council's e-Procurement system for these services, 

Page 127 Agenda Item 13



 
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 
for 15 weeks (two days a week) starting 19/5/21, at a rate of £30.00 per 
hour. The invoice was paid promptly within three working days of receipt. 
Testing confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with procurement and payment procedures.  

5.8 Smye Rumsby (£51.00 gross) - This payment was for the investigation 
of a fault with the Dartford Town Against Crime (DTAC) radio base 
station, located in the security office at the Orchard Shopping Centre. 
The equipment was sent to Smye Rumsby's workshop for testing, but 
was found to be working correctly and advice was given to check the 
antenna. Upon receipt of the invoice (for labour and delivery), a purchase 
order (P024648) was raised via the Council's e-Procurement system, 
which allowed the equipment to be returned to the Civic Centre. The 
invoice was paid promptly within five working days of receipt. Testing 
confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with procurement and payment procedures. 

5.9 South East Employers (£5,100.00 gross) - This payment was for five 
remote training sessions on the subject of Leadership Behaviours for 
Managing and Motivating Hybrid Teams.  The sessions were delivered 
throughout July and August 2021 to a total of 79 delegates. A purchase 
order (P024426) was raised via the Council's e-Procurement system for 
five sessions (of up to 22 delegates) at a discounted rate of £850.00 per 
session (or £38.64 per head). The standard price was £50 per delegate. 
The invoice was paid within nine working days of receipt. Testing 
confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with procurement and payment procedures. 

5.10  STRIB007 (£480.32 gross) - This payment was for the refund of rent on 
a Council owned property in the borough.  The tenant pays each week 
by Standing Order for 52 weeks a year despite rent only being 
chargeable for 48 weeks a year.  The option of paying by Direct Debit for 
48 weeks a year has been offered to them, but they prefer knowing that 
their account is in credit. The refund request was arranged on 9/9/21 and 
paid on 20/9/21 (8 working days).  Testing confirmed that the payment 
was justified, made promptly and in accordance with payment 
procedures. 

 
6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 
 

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments 

 

Financial Implications While there are no financial implications 
associated with the outcomes detailed in the 
report, compliance with agreed financial 
procedures helps to ensure that the Council 

Page 128Agenda Item 13



 
AUDIT BOARD 
26 January 2022 

 

maintains a sound system of financial control 
and governance.  

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications None 

Administrative Implications None 

Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 
Council carries potential inherent risks of fraud, 
or misappropriation. The ‘Selective Invoice 
Checks’ process is one of many steps 
employed by the Council to manage fraud risks 
and to ensure value for money. 

  
8. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

Not applicable 
 
9. Appendices 
 

None 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

Documents 
consulted 

Date Report Author 
Section & 

Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

None N/A 
 

Audit Manager 
01322 343116 

Internal Audit Partnership 
& Directorate of Corporate 
Services 

N/A 

 

Page 129 Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 130


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 22 September 2021
	7 Reports from the External Auditor
	External Auditors App.A- AFR 20-21 FINAL_
	External Auditor's App.B Annual Report 202021_Final

	8 Appointment of External Auditor from the 2023-24 Financial Year Onwards
	9 Role and Effectiveness of the Audit Board and Member Training Needs - Self-Assessment
	Appendic A - Self-Assessment for 2021-22

	10 Audit Board - Independent Member(s)
	11 Risk Management Strategy
	FINAL sm.amd APPENDIX A - Risk Management Strategy December 2021 TS Amend Cleaned
	FINAL sm.amd. APPENDIX B  - Risk Management Strategy December 2021 TS Amend Cleaned

	12 Internal Audit Update Report (January 2022)
	Appendix A  Internal Audit Update Report - January 2022 - As Issued to Leadership Team 21-12-21

	13 Selective Invoice Checks

